
Pursuant to the Oceano Community Services District Board of Director’s Resolution 2021-11, members of the Board of Directors, 
staff and public may participate in this meeting via teleconference and/or electronically. The Oceano Community Services District 

Boardroom will NOT be open for accessing the meeting. 

 

   
 

Notice of Regular Meeting 
Oceano Community Services District - Board of Directors Agenda 

WEDNESDAY, DECEMBER 08, 2021 – 6:00 P.M. 
Location: TELECONFERENCE – SEE BELOW 

 
HOW TO OBSERVE THE MEETING 

 
This meeting will be conducted using Zoom software, which requires a name/email to be entered prior to accessing the meeting. 
This is not a District requirement for participation. Public participants are welcome to use an anonymous name/email if preferred. 

Telephone:  Listen to the meeting live by dialing (669) 900-9128 or (253) 215-8782.  Enter Meeting ID# 892-6279-7188 followed 
by the pound (#) key.  Then enter the Password: 508435 followed by the pound (#) key.  If the line is busy, additional phone 
numbers can be found on Zoom’s website at https://zoom.us/u/abb4GNs5xM 
Computer:  With internet access use the Password: 508435 to watch the live streaming at 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89262797188?pwd=Q2lUeVc5THhnZk10TEtOUTlTcXRiZz09  or by going to zoom.us and selecting 
“Join A Meeting” then entering the Meeting ID# 892-6279-7188 followed by the Password: 508435 

Mobile:  Log in through the Zoom Mobile App on a smartphone or tablet and enter Meeting ID#: 892-6279-7188 then enter the 
Password: 508435. 

For information on Zoom’s system requirements please visit: https://support.zoom.us/hc/en-us/articles/201362023-System-
Requirements-for-PC-Mac-and-Linux 

HOW TO SUBMIT PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 

Before the Meeting:  Please email your comments to carey@oceanocsd.org with “Public Comment” in the subject line. In your 
email please include the agenda item number and title and your comments.  You may also provide public comment through the 
District website at: https://oceanocsd.org/contact/.  All comments received before 12:00 p.m. the day of the meeting will be 
included as an agenda supplement on the District’s website https://oceanocsd.org/meeting-agendas-minutes/agenda-packets/ 
and provided to the Directors prior to the meeting. Comments received after the deadline, but prior to the meeting start time, will 
be attached to the minutes of the meeting. 
Live Comments:  During the meeting, the Board President or designee will announce the opportunity for public comment.  
Members of the public may utilize the “raise hand” feature in Zoom to be placed into the speaking queue.  Each individual 
speaker is limited to a presentation time of THREE (3) minutes per item. Persons wishing to speak on more than one item shall 
limit his/her remarks to a total of SIX (6) minutes. This time may be allocated between items in one-minute increments up to 
three minutes. Time limits may not be yielded to or shared with other speakers. 
To “Raise Hand:” 

 Telephone: Press “ * 9 ” to raise your hand to notify meeting host and be placed in the queue.  The host will unmute 
and call on you when it’s your time to speak. 

 Computer/Mobile Device: Click the “raise hand” button to notify meeting host and be placed in the queue.  The host 
will unmute and call on you when it’s your time to speak.  If the “raise hand” button is not displayed on the screen, 
please click the “participants” icon at the bottom of the screen and the “raise hand” button will appear. 

All items on the agenda including information items, may be deliberated. Any member of the public with an interest in one of 
these items should review the background material and request information on the possible action that could be taken. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

December 08, 2021 - Page 1 of 115



 

 
Public comment Members of the public wishing to speak on consent agenda items may do so when 
recognized by the Presiding Officer.  If a member of the public wishes to speak at this time, Public comment is 
limited to three (3) minutes. 

This public comment period provides an opportunity for members of the public to address the Board on matters 
discussed during Special Presentations and Reports. If a member of the public wishes to speak at this time, Public 
comment is limited to three (3) minutes. 

This public comment period provides an opportunity for members of the public to address the Board on matters of 
interest within the jurisdiction of the District that are not listed on the agenda.  If a member of the public wishes to speak 
at this time, Public comment is limited to three (3) minutes. 

Public comment Members of the public wishing to speak on business items may do so when recognized by 
the Presiding Officer.  If a member of the public wishes to speak at this time, Public comment is limited to three (3) 
minutes. 

1. CALL TO ORDER    
2. ROLL CALL 
3. FLAG SALUTE 
4. AGENDA REVIEW 
5. PUBLIC COMMENT ON MATTERS NOT ON THE AGENDA  

6. SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS & REPORTS:  

A. STAFF REPORTS: 
i. Sheriff’s South Station - Commander Jay Wells 
ii. FCFA Operations - Chief Steve Lieberman 
iii. Operations – Utility System Manager Tony Marraccino  
iv. OCSD General Manager – Will Clemens 

 
B. BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND OUTSIDE COMMITTEE REPORTS: 

i. Director Villa 
ii. Director Gibson 
iii. Vice President White 
iv. President Austin 
v. Director Replogle    

C. PUBLIC COMMENT ON SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS AND REPORTS: 

 

7. CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS: 

A. Review and Approval of Minutes for the Regular Meeting of November 10, 2021 
B. Review of Cash Disbursements 
C. Adopt a Resolution Re-Authorizing Remote Teleconference Meetings Recommendation  
D. Approval of a Budget Adjustment, CEQA Exemption, and Contract for Consultant Services for the 

Stormwater Capture and Groundwater Recharge Project 
 

8. BUSINESS ITEMS:  

A. Consideration of Options for a Special Tax to Fund Fire and Emergency Medical Service 
B. Election of District Officers and 2022 Committee Assignments  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

December 08, 2021 - Page 2 of 115



 

Public comment Members of the public wishing to speak on hearing items may do so when recognized by 
the Presiding Officer.  If a member of the public wishes to speak at this time, Public comment is limited to three (3) 
minutes. 

 
9. HEARING ITEMS:    

A. Adoption of an Ordinance Amending District Code 12 – Solid Waste and approval of a Letter of 
Designation for the Integrated Waste Management Authority 

 
10. RECEIVED WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS: 
 
11. LATE RECEIVED WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS:  
  
12. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS: Deferred Infrastructure Program (as needed), Lopez Water Contract Amendments 

(Late 2021), Wastewater CIP (Future year), Social Media Policy/ Live Stream Board Meetings (As directed), Bill 
insert/ mailing policy (As directed), Policy & Procedure Manual review (As directed), CSDA Transparency 
Certification (As directed), Solid Waste Education Center (As directed) 
 

13. FUTURE HEARING ITEMS:  
 
14. CLOSED SESSION:  

 
15. ADJOURNMENT:  

 
This agenda was prepared and posted pursuant to Government Code Section 54954.2. Agenda is posted at the Oceano 
Community Services District, 1655 Front Street, Oceano, CA.  Agenda and reports can be accessed and downloaded from the 
Oceano Community Services District website at www.oceanocsd.org   
ASSISTANCE FOR THE DISABLED If you are disabled in any way and need accommodation to participate in the Board 
meeting, please call the Clerk of the Board at (805) 481-6730 for assistance at least three (3) working days prior to the meeting 
so necessary arrangements can be made. 

December 08, 2021 - Page 3 of 115



Agenda Item 7A December 08, 2021 - Page 4 of 115



Agenda Item 7A December 08, 2021 - Page 5 of 115



Date: December 8, 2021

To: Board of Directors

From: Carey Casciola, Business and Accounting Manager

Subject: Agenda Item #7(B): Recommendation to Review Cash Disbursements

Recommendation
It is recommended that your board review the attached cash disbursements:

Discussion
The following is a summary of the attached cash disbursements:

Description Amounts
59264 - 59305

Disbursements:
Regular Payable Register - paid 11/18/2021                                                   59264 - 59279 17,346.76$         
Regular Payable Register - paid 12/01/2021                                                   59286 - 59298 26,118.33$         
Hydrant Deposit Refund, U/B Final Bill Refund - paid 12/01/2021 59299 - 59300 517.76$              

Subtotal: 43,982.85$         

Reoccurring Payments for Board Review (authorized by Resolution 2020-06):
Payroll Disbursements - PPE 11/06/2021 32,381.20$         
Payroll Disbursements - PPE 11/20/2021 32,673.11$         
Mechanics Bank Visa Card Online Payment - paid 11/10/2021 1,771.74$           
Reoccurring Health Disbursements Online Payment - paid 11/16/2021 9,430.48$           
Reoccurring Utility Disbursements - paid 11/18/2021 59280 - 59284 1,114.16$           
Reoccurring Health Disbursements - paid 11/18/2021 59285 56.21$                
Reoccurring Utility Disbursements - paid 12/01/2021 59301 - 59304 5,550.83$           
Reoccurring Health Disbursements - paid 12/01/2021 59305 1,042.74$           

Subtotal: 84,020.47$         
Grand Total: 128,003.32$       

Other Agency Involvement
N/A

Other Financial Considerations
Amounts are within the authorized Fund level budgets.

Results

Check Sequence

The Board's review of cash disbursements is an integral component of the District's system of internal controls and 
promotes a well governed community.

N/A

N/A
N/A

N/A

Oceano Community Services District
1655  Front Street,  P.O. Box 599,  Oceano, CA 93475

PHONE(805) 481-6730        FAX (805) 481-6836

Agenda Item 7B December 08, 2021 - Page 6 of 115



11
/1
8/
20
21

  
3:
36

 P
M 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 C
HE
CK

 R
EC
ON
CI
LI
AT
IO
N 

RE
GI
ST
ER

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 P
AG
E:

  
 1

CO
MP
AN
Y:

  
99

  
- 

PO
OL
ED

 C
AS
H 

FU
ND

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
CH
EC
K 

DA
TE
: 

  
  

 0
/0
0/
00
00

 T
HR
U 

99
/9
9/
99
99

AC
CO
UN
T:

  
1-
10
01
-0
00

  
  

  
PO
OL
ED

 C
AS
H 

OP
ER
AT
IN
G 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
CL
EA
R 

DA
TE
: 

  
  

 0
/0
0/
00
00

 T
HR
U 

99
/9
9/
99
99

TY
PE
: 

  
  

Al
l 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

ST
AT
EM
EN
T:

  
  

  
 0
/0
0/
00
00

 T
HR
U 

99
/9
9/
99
99

ST
AT
US
: 

  
Al
l 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

VO
ID
ED

 D
AT
E:

  
  

 0
/0
0/
00
00

 T
HR
U 

99
/9
9/
99
99

FO
LI
O:

  
  

Al
l 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

AM
OU
NT
: 

  
  

  
  

  
0.
00

 T
HR
U 

99
9,
99
9,
99
9.
99

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
CH
EC
K 

NU
MB
ER
: 

  
  

  
05
92
64

 T
HR
U 

  
  

05
92
79

  
  

 A
CC
OU
NT

  
  

  
  

  
--
DA
TE
--

  
--
TY
PE
--

  
NU
MB
ER

  
--
--
--
--
-D
ES
CR
IP
TI
ON
--
--
--
--
--

  
--
--
AM
OU
NT
--
- 

  
 S
TA
TU
S 

 F
OL
IO

  
CL
EA
R 

DA
TE

                 

BA
NK
-D
RA
FT

  
  

  
TO
TA
L:

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
0.
00

EF
T 

  
  

  
  

  
  

TO
TA
L:

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
0.
00

SE
RV
IC
E 

CH
AR
GE

  
TO
TA
L:

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
0.
00

MI
SC
EL
LA
NE
OU
S 

  
TO
TA
L:

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
0.
00

IN
TE
RE
ST

  
  

  
  

TO
TA
L:

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
0.
00

DE
PO
SI
T 

  
  

  
  

TO
TA
L:

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
0.
00

TO
TA
LS

 F
OR

 A
CC
OU
NT

 1
-1
00
1-
0 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

CH
EC
K 

  
  

  
  

  
TO
TA
L:

  
  

  
  

  
  

 1
7,
34
6.
76
CR

1-
10
01
-0
00

  
  

  
11
/1
8/
20
21

 C
HE
CK

  
  

 0
59
27
9 

 Z
EN
IT
H 

IN
SU
RA
NC
E 

CO
MP
AN
Y 

  
  

  
  

  
  

1,
45
3.
00
CR

  
 O
UT
ST
ND

  
 A

  
  

0/
00
/0
00
0

W
O

R
K

E
R

S
 C

O
M

P
 IN

S
U

R
A

N
C

E

1-
10
01
-0
00

  
  

  
11
/1
8/
20
21

 C
HE
CK

  
  

 0
59
27
8 

 W
AT
ER

 S
YS
TE
MS

 C
ON
SU
LT
IN
G,

 I
NC
. 

  
  

  
  

62
2.
13
CR

  
 O
UT
ST
ND

  
 A

  
  

0/
00
/0
00
0

N
C

M
A

 S
T

A
F

F
 E

X
T

N
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

1-
10
01
-0
00

  
  

  
11
/1
8/
20
21

 C
HE
CK

  
  

 0
59
27
7 

 T
RO
ES
H 

CO
LE
MA
N 

PA
CI
FI
C 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

25
7.
40
CR

  
 O
UT
ST
ND

  
 A

  
  

0/
00
/0
00
0

S
E

W
E

R
 M

A
IN

T
E

N
A

N
C

E

1-
10
01
-0
00

  
  

  
11
/1
8/
20
21

 C
HE
CK

  
  

 0
59
27
6 

 S
LO

 C
O 

PU
BL
IC

 H
EA
LT
H 

DE
PT
. 

  
  

  
  

  
  

45
5.
70
CR

  
 O
UT
ST
ND

  
 A

  
  

0/
00
/0
00
0

B
A

C
K

F
LO

W
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

1-
10
01
-0
00

  
  

  
11
/1
8/
20
21

 C
HE
CK

  
  

 0
59
27
5 

 P
RO
-T
EC
H 

LA
ND
SC
AP
E 

MA
NA
GE
ME
NT
, 

  
  

  
  

41
0.
00
CR

  
 O
UT
ST
ND

  
 A

  
  

0/
00
/0
00
0

LA
N

D
S

C
A

P
IN

G

1-
10
01
-0
00

  
  

  
11
/1
8/
20
21

 C
HE
CK

  
  

 0
59
27
4 

 O
NE

 C
OO
L 

EA
RT
H 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
2,
49
5.
00
CR

  
 O
UT
ST
ND

  
 A

  
  

0/
00
/0
00
0

E
A

R
T

H
 G

E
N

IU
S

 P
G

M
-O

C
E

A
N

O
 E

LE
M

E
N

T
A

R
Y

1-
10
01
-0
00

  
  

  
11
/1
8/
20
21

 C
HE
CK

  
  

 0
59
27
3 

 N
AT
IO
NA
L 

DE
MO
GR
AP
HI
CS
, 

IN
C 

  
  

  
  

  
2,
75
0.
00
CR

  
 O
UT
ST
ND

  
 A

  
  

0/
00
/0
00
0

D
E

M
O

G
R

A
P

H
IC

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S

1-
10
01
-0
00

  
  

  
11
/1
8/
20
21

 C
HE
CK

  
  

 0
59
27
2 

 M
OS
S,

 L
EV
Y 

& 
HA
RT
ZH
EI
M 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
2,
00
0.
00
CR

  
 O
UT
ST
ND

  
 A

  
  

0/
00
/0
00
0

A
U

D
IT

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S

1-
10
01
-0
00

  
  

  
11
/1
8/
20
21

 C
HE
CK

  
  

 0
59
27
1 

 M
IN
ER
'S

 A
CE

 H
AR
DW
AR
E,

 I
NC
. 

  
  

  
  

  
  

18
7.
89
CR

  
 O
UT
ST
ND

  
 A

  
  

0/
00
/0
00
0

S
Y

S
T

E
M

 P
A

R
T

S

1-
10
01
-0
00

  
  

  
11
/1
8/
20
21

 C
HE
CK

  
  

 0
59
27
0 

 M
ID

 S
TA
TE

 C
ON
CR
ET
E 

PR
OD
UC
TS

  
  

  
  

  
  

58
9.
34
CR

  
 O
UT
ST
ND

  
 A

  
  

0/
00
/0
00
0

S
E

W
E

R
 M

A
IN

T
E

N
A

N
C

E

1-
10
01
-0
00

  
  

  
11
/1
8/
20
21

 C
HE
CK

  
  

 0
59
26
9 

 J
.B
. 

DE
WA
R,

 I
NC
. 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
42
4.
06
CR

  
 O
UT
ST
ND

  
 A

  
  

0/
00
/0
00
0

F
U

E
L

1-
10
01
-0
00

  
  

  
11
/1
8/
20
21

 C
HE
CK

  
  

 0
59
26
8 

 G
SI

 W
AT
ER

 S
OL
UT
IO
NS
, 

IN
C.

  
  

  
  

  
  

1,
99
7.
87
CR

  
 O
UT
ST
ND

  
 A

  
  

0/
00
/0
00
0

N
C

M
A

 2
02

1 
A

N
N

U
A

L 
R

E
P

O
R

T

1-
10
01
-0
00

  
  

  
11
/1
8/
20
21

 C
HE
CK

  
  

 0
59
26
7 

 F
ER
GU
SO
N 

EN
TE
RP
RI
SE
S,

 I
NC

 #
13
5 

  
  

  
  

29
6.
44
CR

  
 O
UT
ST
ND

  
 A

  
  

0/
00
/0
00
0

S
Y

S
T

E
M

 P
A

R
T

S

1-
10
01
-0
00

  
  

  
11
/1
8/
20
21

 C
HE
CK

  
  

 0
59
26
6 

 F
AM
CO
N 

PI
PE

 &
 S
UP
PL
Y,

 I
NC
. 

  
  

  
  

  
  

16
5.
30
CR

  
 O
UT
ST
ND

  
 A

  
  

0/
00
/0
00
0

S
Y

S
T

E
M

 P
A

R
T

S

1-
10
01
-0
00

  
  

  
11
/1
8/
20
21

 C
HE
CK

  
  

 0
59
26
5 

 B
UR
DI
NE

 P
RI
NT
IN
G 

& 
GR
AP
HI
CS

  
  

  
  

  
3,
05
6.
40
CR

  
 O
UT
ST
ND

  
 A

  
  

0/
00
/0
00
0

W
A

T
E

R
 R

P
T

 P
R

IN
T

, M
A

IL
 &

 P
O

S
T

A
G

E
,E

N
V

E
LO

P
E

S

1-
10
01
-0
00

  
  

  
11
/1
8/
20
21

 C
HE
CK

  
  

 0
59
26
4 

 A
RA
MA
RK

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

18
6.
23
CR

  
 O
UT
ST
ND

  
 A

  
  

0/
00
/0
00
0

U
N

IF
O

R
M

S
CH
EC
K:

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--

A
ge

nd
a 

Ite
m

 7
B

D
ec

em
be

r 0
8,

 2
02

1 
- P

ag
e 

7 
of

 1
15



11
/1
8/
20
21

  
3:
36

 P
M 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 C
HE
CK

 R
EC
ON
CI
LI
AT
IO
N 

RE
GI
ST
ER

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 P
AG
E:

  
 2

CO
MP
AN
Y:

  
99

  
- 

PO
OL
ED

 C
AS
H 

FU
ND

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
CH
EC
K 

DA
TE
: 

  
  

 0
/0
0/
00
00

 T
HR
U 

99
/9
9/
99
99

AC
CO
UN
T:

  
1-
10
01
-0
00

  
  

  
PO
OL
ED

 C
AS
H 

OP
ER
AT
IN
G 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
CL
EA
R 

DA
TE
: 

  
  

 0
/0
0/
00
00

 T
HR
U 

99
/9
9/
99
99

TY
PE
: 

  
  

Al
l 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

ST
AT
EM
EN
T:

  
  

  
 0
/0
0/
00
00

 T
HR
U 

99
/9
9/
99
99

ST
AT
US
: 

  
Al
l 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

VO
ID
ED

 D
AT
E:

  
  

 0
/0
0/
00
00

 T
HR
U 

99
/9
9/
99
99

FO
LI
O:

  
  

Al
l 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

AM
OU
NT
: 

  
  

  
  

  
0.
00

 T
HR
U 

99
9,
99
9,
99
9.
99

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
CH
EC
K 

NU
MB
ER
: 

  
  

  
05
92
64

 T
HR
U 

  
  

05
92
79

  
  

 A
CC
OU
NT

  
  

  
  

  
--
DA
TE
--

  
--
TY
PE
--

  
NU
MB
ER

  
--
--
--
--
-D
ES
CR
IP
TI
ON
--
--
--
--
--

  
--
--
AM
OU
NT
--
- 

  
 S
TA
TU
S 

 F
OL
IO

  
CL
EA
R 

DA
TE

   
TO
TA
LS

 F
OR

 P
OO
LE
D 

CA
SH

 F
UN
D 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

CH
EC
K 

  
  

  
  

  
TO
TA
L:

  
  

  
  

  
  

 1
7,
34
6.
76
CR

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
DE
PO
SI
T 

  
  

  
  

TO
TA
L:

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
0.
00

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
IN
TE
RE
ST

  
  

  
  

TO
TA
L:

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
0.
00

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
MI
SC
EL
LA
NE
OU
S 

  
TO
TA
L:

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
0.
00

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
SE
RV
IC
E 

CH
AR
GE

  
TO
TA
L:

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
0.
00

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
EF
T 

  
  

  
  

  
  

TO
TA
L:

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
0.
00

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
BA
NK
-D
RA
FT

  
  

  
TO
TA
L:

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
0.
00

A
ge

nd
a 

Ite
m

 7
B

D
ec

em
be

r 0
8,

 2
02

1 
- P

ag
e 

8 
of

 1
15



12
/0
1/
20
21

  
3:
25

 P
M 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 C
HE
CK

 R
EC
ON
CI
LI
AT
IO
N 

RE
GI
ST
ER

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 P
AG
E:

  
 1

CO
MP
AN
Y:

  
99

  
- 

PO
OL
ED

 C
AS
H 

FU
ND

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
CH
EC
K 

DA
TE
: 

  
  

 0
/0
0/
00
00

 T
HR
U 

99
/9
9/
99
99

AC
CO
UN
T:

  
1-
10
01
-0
00

  
  

  
PO
OL
ED

 C
AS
H 

OP
ER
AT
IN
G 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
CL
EA
R 

DA
TE
: 

  
  

 0
/0
0/
00
00

 T
HR
U 

99
/9
9/
99
99

TY
PE
: 

  
  

Al
l 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

ST
AT
EM
EN
T:

  
  

  
 0
/0
0/
00
00

 T
HR
U 

99
/9
9/
99
99

ST
AT
US
: 

  
Al
l 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

VO
ID
ED

 D
AT
E:

  
  

 0
/0
0/
00
00

 T
HR
U 

99
/9
9/
99
99

FO
LI
O:

  
  

Al
l 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

AM
OU
NT
: 

  
  

  
  

  
0.
00

 T
HR
U 

99
9,
99
9,
99
9.
99

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
CH
EC
K 

NU
MB
ER
: 

  
  

  
05
92
86

 T
HR
U 

  
  

05
92
98

  
  

 A
CC
OU
NT

  
  

  
  

  
--
DA
TE
--

  
--
TY
PE
--

  
NU
MB
ER

  
--
--
--
--
-D
ES
CR
IP
TI
ON
--
--
--
--
--

  
--
--
AM
OU
NT
--
- 

  
 S
TA
TU
S 

 F
OL
IO

  
CL
EA
R 

DA
TE

 CH
EC
K:

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--

  
  

 1
-1
00
1-
00
0 

  
  

 1
2/
01
/2
02
1 

CH
EC
K 

  
  

05
92
86

  
AD
AM
SK
I 

MO
RO
SK
I 

MA
DD
EN

 C
UM
BE
RL

  
  

  
 1
,8
18
.5
0C
R 

  
OU
TS
TN
D 

  
A 

  
 0
/0
0/
00
00

   
  

 1
-1
00
1-
00
0 

  
  

 1
2/
01
/2
02
1 

CH
EC
K 

  
  

05
92
87

  
AR
AM
AR
K 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 1
85
.3
0C
R 

  
OU
TS
TN
D 

  
A 

  
 0
/0
0/
00
00

   
  

 1
-1
00
1-
00
0 

  
  

 1
2/
01
/2
02
1 

CH
EC
K 

  
  

05
92
88

  
BR
EN
T 

SA
RK
IS
ON

 D
BA

 C
AL
TE
C 

CO
MP

  
  

  
  

 5
97
.0
0C
R 

  
OU
TS
TN
D 

  
A 

  
 0
/0
0/
00
00

   
  

 1
-1
00
1-
00
0 

  
  

 1
2/
01
/2
02
1 

CH
EC
K 

  
  

05
92
89

  
CL
IN
IC
AL

 L
AB

 O
F 

SA
N 

BE
RN
AR
DI
NO

  
  

  
  

 6
20
.0
0C
R 

  
OU
TS
TN
D 

  
A 

  
 0
/0
0/
00
00

   
  

 1
-1
00
1-
00
0 

  
  

 1
2/
01
/2
02
1 

CH
EC
K 

  
  

05
92
90

  
FA
MC
ON

 P
IP
E 

& 
SU
PP
LY
, 

IN
C.

  
  

  
  

  
  

 2
99
.2
3C
R 

  
OU
TS
TN
D 

  
A 

  
 0
/0
0/
00
00

   
  

 1
-1
00
1-
00
0 

  
  

 1
2/
01
/2
02
1 

CH
EC
K 

  
  

05
92
91

  
MI
NE
R'
S 

AC
E 

HA
RD
WA
RE
, 

IN
C.

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
95
.5
2C
R 

  
OU
TS
TN
D 

  
A 

  
 0
/0
0/
00
00

   
  

 1
-1
00
1-
00
0 

  
  

 1
2/
01
/2
02
1 

CH
EC
K 

  
  

05
92
92

  
MU
NI
CI
PA
L 

CO
DE

 C
OR
PO
RA
TI
ON

  
  

  
  

  
 2
,2
95
.0
0C
R 

  
OU
TS
TN
D 

  
A 

  
 0
/0
0/
00
00

   
  

 1
-1
00
1-
00
0 

  
  

 1
2/
01
/2
02
1 

CH
EC
K 

  
  

05
92
93

  
NB
S 

GO
VE
RN
ME
NT

 F
IN
AN
CE

 G
RO
UP

  
  

  
  

 4
,5
00
.0
0C
R 

  
OU
TS
TN
D 

  
A 

  
 0
/0
0/
00
00

   
  

 1
-1
00
1-
00
0 

  
  

 1
2/
01
/2
02
1 

CH
EC
K 

  
  

05
92
94

  
PE
TT
Y 

CA
SH

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 2
.0
1C
R 

  
OU
TS
TN
D 

  
A 

  
 0
/0
0/
00
00

   
  

 1
-1
00
1-
00
0 

  
  

 1
2/
01
/2
02
1 

CH
EC
K 

  
  

05
92
95

  
QU
IL
L 

CO
RP
OR
AT
IO
N 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 1
14
.1
9C
R 

  
OU
TS
TN
D 

  
A 

  
 0
/0
0/
00
00

   
  

 1
-1
00
1-
00
0 

  
  

 1
2/
01
/2
02
1 

CH
EC
K 

  
  

05
92
96

  
SL
O 

CO
 P
UB
LI
C 

HE
AL
TH

 D
EP
T.

  
  

  
  

  
 1
,0
24
.0
0C
R 

  
OU
TS
TN
D 

  
A 

  
 0
/0
0/
00
00

   
  

 1
-1
00
1-
00
0 

  
  

 1
2/
01
/2
02
1 

CH
EC
K 

  
  

05
92
97

  
SW
RC
B/

 D
RI
NK
IN
G 

WA
TE
R 

OP
 C
ER
T 

  
  

  
  

  
60
.0
0C
R 

  
OU
TS
TN
D 

  
A 

  
 0
/0
0/
00
00

   
  

 1
-1
00
1-
00
0 

  
  

 1
2/
01
/2
02
1 

CH
EC
K 

  
  

05
92
98

  
RE
CY
CL
E 

AW
AY
, 

LL
C 

  
DB
A 

TR
AS
HC

  
  

  
14
,5
07
.5
8C
R 

  
OU
TS
TN
D 

  
A 

  
 0
/0
0/
00
00

   
TO
TA
LS

 F
OR

 A
CC
OU
NT

 1
-1
00
1-
0 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

CH
EC
K 

  
  

  
  

  
TO
TA
L:

  
  

  
  

  
  

 2
6,
11
8.
33
CR

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
DE
PO
SI
T 

  
  

  
  

TO
TA
L:

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
0.
00

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
IN
TE
RE
ST

  
  

  
  

TO
TA
L:

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
0.
00

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
MI
SC
EL
LA
NE
OU
S 

  
TO
TA
L:

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
0.
00

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
SE
RV
IC
E 

CH
AR
GE

  
TO
TA
L:

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
0.
00

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
EF
T 

  
  

  
  

  
  

TO
TA
L:

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
0.
00

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
BA
NK
-D
RA
FT

  
  

  
TO
TA
L:

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
0.
00

  
TO
TA
LS

 F
OR

 P
OO
LE
D 

CA
SH

 F
UN
D 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

CH
EC
K 

  
  

  
  

  
TO
TA
L:

  
  

  
  

  
  

 2
6,
11
8.
33
CR

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
DE
PO
SI
T 

  
  

  
  

TO
TA
L:

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
0.
00

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
IN
TE
RE
ST

  
  

  
  

TO
TA
L:

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
0.
00

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
MI
SC
EL
LA
NE
OU
S 

  
TO
TA
L:

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
0.
00

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
SE
RV
IC
E 

CH
AR
GE

  
TO
TA
L:

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
0.
00

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
EF
T 

  
  

  
  

  
  

TO
TA
L:

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
0.
00

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
BA
NK
-D
RA
FT

  
  

  
TO
TA
L:

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
0.
00

M
O

N
T

H
LY

 S
T

D
  B

K
U

P
, T

E
C

H
 S

U
P

P
O

R
T

W
A

T
E

R
 S

A
M

P
LE

S

H
Y

D
R

A
N

T
 M

A
IN

T
E

N
A

N
C

E

IN
V

E
N

T
O

R
Y

A
N

N
U

A
L 

S
E

LF
-P

U
B

 L
IC

E
N

S
E

P
A

R
C

E
L 

T
A

X
 M

O
D

E
LI

N
G

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S

U
/B

 A
D

D
R

 R
E

T
N

 N
O

T
IC

E
 P

O
S

T
A

G
E

 D
U

E

O
F

F
IC

E
 S

U
P

P
LI

E
S

A
N

N
U

A
L 

H
A

Z
M

A
T

 F
E

E

R
E

N
E

W
A

L 
C

E
R

T
IF

IC
A

T
IO

N
 F

E
E

S
IX

 D
O

U
B

LE
 R

E
C

Y
C

LI
N

G
 S

T
A

T
IO

N
S

A
ge

nd
a 

Ite
m

 7
B

D
ec

em
be

r 0
8,

 2
02

1 
- P

ag
e 

9 
of

 1
15

LE
G

A
L 

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S

U
N

IF
O

R
M

S



12
/0
1/
20
21

  
3:
30

 P
M 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 C
HE
CK

 R
EC
ON
CI
LI
AT
IO
N 

RE
GI
ST
ER

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 P
AG
E:

  
 1

CO
MP
AN
Y:

  
99

  
- 

PO
OL
ED

 C
AS
H 

FU
ND

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
CH
EC
K 

DA
TE
: 

  
  

 0
/0
0/
00
00

 T
HR
U 

99
/9
9/
99
99

AC
CO
UN
T:

  
1-
10
01
-0
00

  
  

  
PO
OL
ED

 C
AS
H 

OP
ER
AT
IN
G 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
CL
EA
R 

DA
TE
: 

  
  

 0
/0
0/
00
00

 T
HR
U 

99
/9
9/
99
99

TY
PE
: 

  
  

Al
l 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

ST
AT
EM
EN
T:

  
  

  
 0
/0
0/
00
00

 T
HR
U 

99
/9
9/
99
99

ST
AT
US
: 

  
Al
l 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

VO
ID
ED

 D
AT
E:

  
  

 0
/0
0/
00
00

 T
HR
U 

99
/9
9/
99
99

FO
LI
O:

  
  

Al
l 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

AM
OU
NT
: 

  
  

  
  

  
0.
00

 T
HR
U 

99
9,
99
9,
99
9.
99

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
CH
EC
K 

NU
MB
ER
: 

  
  

  
05
92
99

 T
HR
U 

  
  

05
93
00

  
  

 A
CC
OU
NT

  
  

  
  

  
--
DA
TE
--

  
--
TY
PE
--

  
NU
MB
ER

  
--
--
--
--
-D
ES
CR
IP
TI
ON
--
--
--
--
--

  
--
--
AM
OU
NT
--
- 

  
 S
TA
TU
S 

 F
OL
IO

  
CL
EA
R 

DA
TE

 CH
EC
K:

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--

  
  

 1
-1
00
1-
00
0 

  
  

 1
2/
01
/2
02
1 

CH
EC
K 

  
  

05
92
99

  
MO
CK
, 

AD
RI
ON

 C
OL
IN

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
17
.7
6C
R 

  
OU
TS
TN
D 

  
A 

  
 0
/0
0/
00
00

   
  

 1
-1
00
1-
00
0 

  
  

 1
2/
01
/2
02
1 

CH
EC
K 

  
  

05
93
00

  
JE
RO
ME

 J
ON
ES

 (
SS
LO
CS

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 5
00
.0
0C
R 

  
OU
TS
TN
D 

  
A 

  
 0
/0
0/
00
00

   
TO
TA
LS

 F
OR

 A
CC
OU
NT

 1
-1
00
1-
0 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

CH
EC
K 

  
  

  
  

  
TO
TA
L:

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

51
7.
76
CR

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
DE
PO
SI
T 

  
  

  
  

TO
TA
L:

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
0.
00

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
IN
TE
RE
ST

  
  

  
  

TO
TA
L:

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
0.
00

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
MI
SC
EL
LA
NE
OU
S 

  
TO
TA
L:

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
0.
00

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
SE
RV
IC
E 

CH
AR
GE

  
TO
TA
L:

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
0.
00

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
EF
T 

  
  

  
  

  
  

TO
TA
L:

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
0.
00

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
BA
NK
-D
RA
FT

  
  

  
TO
TA
L:

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
0.
00

  
TO
TA
LS

 F
OR

 P
OO
LE
D 

CA
SH

 F
UN
D 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

CH
EC
K 

  
  

  
  

  
TO
TA
L:

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

51
7.
76
CR

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
DE
PO
SI
T 

  
  

  
  

TO
TA
L:

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
0.
00

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
IN
TE
RE
ST

  
  

  
  

TO
TA
L:

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
0.
00

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
MI
SC
EL
LA
NE
OU
S 

  
TO
TA
L:

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
0.
00

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
SE
RV
IC
E 

CH
AR
GE

  
TO
TA
L:

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
0.
00

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
EF
T 

  
  

  
  

  
  

TO
TA
L:

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
0.
00

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
BA
NK
-D
RA
FT

  
  

  
TO
TA
L:

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
0.
00

A
ge

nd
a 

Ite
m

 7
B

D
ec

em
be

r 0
8,

 2
02

1 
- P

ag
e 

10
 o

f 1
15

U
B

 F
IN

A
L 

B
IL

L 
C

R
E

D
IT

 B
A

LA
N

C
E

 -
 R

E
F

U
N

D
 D

U
E

R
E

F
U

N
D

 H
Y

D
R

A
N

T
 D

E
P

O
S

IT
 



Agenda Item 7B December 08, 2021 - Page 11 of 115



Oc
ea

no
 C

om
m

un
ity

 S
er

vi
ce

s D
ist

ric
t

A/
P 

Vi
sa

 C
ar

d 
Di

sb
ur

se
m

en
t

M
ec

ha
ni

cs
 B

an
k 

Vi
sa

 C
ar

d

Da
te

Tr
an

sa
ct

io
n

Na
m

e
Am

ou
nt

De
sc

rip
tio

n
GL

 A
cc

ou
nt

 #
10

/2
1/

20
21

DE
BI

T
M

SF
T 

* 
E0

50
0G

CH
CP

 8
00

-6
42

-7
(1

,6
50

.0
0)

$ 
PE

RM
IT

S,
 F

EE
S 

LI
CE

NS
ES

01
-5

-4
10

0-
24

8
10

/1
8/

20
21

DE
BI

T
IN

TU
IT

 *
Q

ui
ck

Bo
ok

s O
nl

 C
L.

IN
TU

IT
(5

0.
00

)
$ 

   
   

PE
RM

IT
S,

 F
EE

S 
LI

CE
NS

ES
01

-5
-4

10
0-

24
8

10
/0

6/
20

21
DE

BI
T

M
SF

T 
* 

E0
50

0G
6J

NN
 8

00
-6

42
-7

(1
2.

50
)

$ 
   

   
PE

RM
IT

S,
 F

EE
S 

LI
CE

NS
ES

01
-5

-4
10

0-
24

8
10

/0
6/

20
21

DE
BI

T
M

SF
T 

* 
E0

40
0G

01
E6

 8
00

-6
42

-7
(1

2.
50

)
$ 

   
   

PE
RM

IT
S,

 F
EE

S 
LI

CE
NS

ES
01

-5
-4

10
0-

24
8

10
/0

4/
20

21
DE

BI
T

ZO
O

M
.U

S 
88

8-
79

9-
96

66
 W

W
W

.Z
O

O
M

.
(4

6.
74

)
$ 

   
   

O
FF

IC
E 

EX
PE

NS
E

01
-5

-4
10

0-
20

0

To
ta

l A
CH

 - 
11

/1
0/

20
21

(1
,7

71
.7

4)
$ $1

,7
71

.7
4

12
/0

8/
20

21
 B

oa
rd

 M
ee

tin
g 

- M
ec

ha
ni

cs
 V

isa
 C

ar
d 

O
nl

in
e 

Pa
ym

en
t -

 
pa

id
 1

1/
10

/2
02

1

A
ge

nd
a 

Ite
m

 7
B

D
ec

em
be

r 0
8,

 2
02

1 
- P

ag
e 

12
 o

f 1
15



Oc
ea

no
 C

om
m

un
ity

 S
er

vi
ce

s D
ist

ric
t

A/
P 

Ap
pr

ov
al

O
nl

in
e 

Pa
ym

en
t

Da
te

Na
m

e
Am

ou
nt

De
sc

rip
tio

n
Ac

co
un

t N
am

e
11

/1
6/

20
21

An
th

em
 B

lu
e 

Cr
os

s
9,

43
0.

48
$ 

 
Em

pl
oy

ee
 H

ea
lth

 In
su

ra
nc

e
PU

LL
ED

 F
RO

M
 P

AY
RO

LL

To
ta

l A
CH

 - 
11

/1
6/

20
21

9,
43

0.
48

$ 
 9,

43
0.

48
$ 

 
12

/0
8/

20
21

 B
oa

rd
 M

ee
tin

g 
- O

nl
in

e 
Pa

ym
en

t -
 

pa
id

 1
1/

16
/2

02
1

A
ge

nd
a 

Ite
m

 7
B

D
ec

em
be

r 0
8,

 2
02

1 
- P

ag
e 

13
 o

f 1
15



11
/1
8/
20
21

  
3:
34

 P
M 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 C
HE
CK

 R
EC
ON
CI
LI
AT
IO
N 

RE
GI
ST
ER

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 P
AG
E:

  
 1

CO
MP
AN
Y:

  
99

  
- 

PO
OL
ED

 C
AS
H 

FU
ND

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
CH
EC
K 

DA
TE
: 

  
  

 0
/0
0/
00
00

 T
HR
U 

99
/9
9/
99
99

AC
CO
UN
T:

  
1-
10
01
-0
00

  
  

  
PO
OL
ED

 C
AS
H 

OP
ER
AT
IN
G 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
CL
EA
R 

DA
TE
: 

  
  

 0
/0
0/
00
00

 T
HR
U 

99
/9
9/
99
99

TY
PE
: 

  
  

Al
l 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

ST
AT
EM
EN
T:

  
  

  
 0
/0
0/
00
00

 T
HR
U 

99
/9
9/
99
99

ST
AT
US
: 

  
Al
l 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

VO
ID
ED

 D
AT
E:

  
  

 0
/0
0/
00
00

 T
HR
U 

99
/9
9/
99
99

FO
LI
O:

  
  

Al
l 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

AM
OU
NT
: 

  
  

  
  

  
0.
00

 T
HR
U 

99
9,
99
9,
99
9.
99

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
CH
EC
K 

NU
MB
ER
: 

  
  

  
05
92
80

 T
HR
U 

  
  

05
92
84

  
  

 A
CC
OU
NT

  
  

  
  

  
--
DA
TE
--

  
--
TY
PE
--

  
NU
MB
ER

  
--
--
--
--
-D
ES
CR
IP
TI
ON
--
--
--
--
--

  
--
--
AM
OU
NT
--
- 

  
 S
TA
TU
S 

 F
OL
IO

  
CL
EA
R 

DA
TE

 CH
EC
K:

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--

  
  

 1
-1
00
1-
00
0 

  
  

 1
1/
18
/2
02
1 

CH
EC
K 

  
  

05
92
80

  
MA
P 

CO
MM
UN
IC
AT
IO
NS
, 

IN
C.

 D
BA

 A
  

  
  

  
 3
16
.1
0C
R 

  
OU
TS
TN
D 

  
A 

  
 0
/0
0/
00
00

   
  

 1
-1
00
1-
00
0 

  
  

 1
1/
18
/2
02
1 

CH
EC
K 

  
  

05
92
81

  
CH
AR
TE
R 

CO
MM
UN
IC
AT
IO
NS

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 1
50
.0
0C
R 

  
OU
TS
TN
D 

  
A 

  
 0
/0
0/
00
00

   
  

 1
-1
00
1-
00
0 

  
  

 1
1/
18
/2
02
1 

CH
EC
K 

  
  

05
92
82

  
DI
GI
TA
L 

WE
ST

 N
ET
WO
RK
S,

 I
NC
. 

  
  

  
  

  
 4
08
.1
2C
R 

  
OU
TS
TN
D 

  
A 

  
 0
/0
0/
00
00

   
  

 1
-1
00
1-
00
0 

  
  

 1
1/
18
/2
02
1 

CH
EC
K 

  
  

05
92
83

  
SO

 C
AL

 G
AS

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 1
35
.4
9C
R 

  
OU
TS
TN
D 

  
A 

  
 0
/0
0/
00
00

   
  

 1
-1
00
1-
00
0 

  
  

 1
1/
18
/2
02
1 

CH
EC
K 

  
  

05
92
84

  
ST
AN
LE
Y 

CO
NV
ER
GE
NT

 S
EC
UR
IT
Y 

SO
  

  
  

  
 1
04
.4
5C
R 

  
OU
TS
TN
D 

  
A 

  
 0
/0
0/
00
00

   
TO
TA
LS

 F
OR

 A
CC
OU
NT

 1
-1
00
1-
0 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

CH
EC
K 

  
  

  
  

  
TO
TA
L:

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
1,
11
4.
16
CR

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
DE
PO
SI
T 

  
  

  
  

TO
TA
L:

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
0.
00

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
IN
TE
RE
ST

  
  

  
  

TO
TA
L:

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
0.
00

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
MI
SC
EL
LA
NE
OU
S 

  
TO
TA
L:

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
0.
00

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
SE
RV
IC
E 

CH
AR
GE

  
TO
TA
L:

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
0.
00

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
EF
T 

  
  

  
  

  
  

TO
TA
L:

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
0.
00

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
BA
NK
-D
RA
FT

  
  

  
TO
TA
L:

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
0.
00

  
TO
TA
LS

 F
OR

 P
OO
LE
D 

CA
SH

 F
UN
D 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

CH
EC
K 

  
  

  
  

  
TO
TA
L:

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
1,
11
4.
16
CR

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
DE
PO
SI
T 

  
  

  
  

TO
TA
L:

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
0.
00

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
IN
TE
RE
ST

  
  

  
  

TO
TA
L:

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
0.
00

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
MI
SC
EL
LA
NE
OU
S 

  
TO
TA
L:

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
0.
00

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
SE
RV
IC
E 

CH
AR
GE

  
TO
TA
L:

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
0.
00

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
EF
T 

  
  

  
  

  
  

TO
TA
L:

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
0.
00

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
BA
NK
-D
RA
FT

  
  

  
TO
TA
L:

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
0.
00

A
ge

nd
a 

Ite
m

 7
B

D
ec

em
be

r 0
8,

 2
02

1 
- P

ag
e 

14
 o

f 1
15

A
N

S
W

E
R

IN
G

 S
V

C

IN
T

E
R

N
E

T
 -

 C
O

M
M

U
N

IC
A

T
IO

N
S

P
H

O
N

E
S

U
T

IL
IT

Y

W
E

LL
S

 A
N

D
 F

IR
E

 M
O

N
IT

O
R



11
/1
8/
20
21

  
3:
32

 P
M 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 C
HE
CK

 R
EC
ON
CI
LI
AT
IO
N 

RE
GI
ST
ER

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 P
AG
E:

  
 1

CO
MP
AN
Y:

  
99

  
- 

PO
OL
ED

 C
AS
H 

FU
ND

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
CH
EC
K 

DA
TE
: 

  
  

 0
/0
0/
00
00

 T
HR
U 

99
/9
9/
99
99

AC
CO
UN
T:

  
1-
10
01
-0
00

  
  

  
PO
OL
ED

 C
AS
H 

OP
ER
AT
IN
G 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
CL
EA
R 

DA
TE
: 

  
  

 0
/0
0/
00
00

 T
HR
U 

99
/9
9/
99
99

TY
PE
: 

  
  

Al
l 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

ST
AT
EM
EN
T:

  
  

  
 0
/0
0/
00
00

 T
HR
U 

99
/9
9/
99
99

ST
AT
US
: 

  
Al
l 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

VO
ID
ED

 D
AT
E:

  
  

 0
/0
0/
00
00

 T
HR
U 

99
/9
9/
99
99

FO
LI
O:

  
  

Al
l 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

AM
OU
NT
: 

  
  

  
  

  
0.
00

 T
HR
U 

99
9,
99
9,
99
9.
99

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
CH
EC
K 

NU
MB
ER
: 

  
  

  
05
92
85

 T
HR
U 

  
  

05
92
85

  
  

 A
CC
OU
NT

  
  

  
  

  
--
DA
TE
--

  
--
TY
PE
--

  
NU
MB
ER

  
--
--
--
--
-D
ES
CR
IP
TI
ON
--
--
--
--
--

  
--
--
AM
OU
NT
--
- 

  
 S
TA
TU
S 

 F
OL
IO

  
CL
EA
R 

DA
TE

 CH
EC
K:

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--

  
  

 1
-1
00
1-
00
0 

  
  

 1
1/
18
/2
02
1 

CH
EC
K 

  
  

05
92
85

  
TA
SC

 -
CL
IE
NT

 I
NV
OI
CE
S 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
56
.2
1C
R 

  
OU
TS
TN
D 

  
A 

  
 0
/0
0/
00
00

   
TO
TA
LS

 F
OR

 A
CC
OU
NT

 1
-1
00
1-
0 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

CH
EC
K 

  
  

  
  

  
TO
TA
L:

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 5
6.
21
CR

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
DE
PO
SI
T 

  
  

  
  

TO
TA
L:

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
0.
00

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
IN
TE
RE
ST

  
  

  
  

TO
TA
L:

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
0.
00

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
MI
SC
EL
LA
NE
OU
S 

  
TO
TA
L:

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
0.
00

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
SE
RV
IC
E 

CH
AR
GE

  
TO
TA
L:

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
0.
00

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
EF
T 

  
  

  
  

  
  

TO
TA
L:

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
0.
00

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
BA
NK
-D
RA
FT

  
  

  
TO
TA
L:

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
0.
00

  
TO
TA
LS

 F
OR

 P
OO
LE
D 

CA
SH

 F
UN
D 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

CH
EC
K 

  
  

  
  

  
TO
TA
L:

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 5
6.
21
CR

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
DE
PO
SI
T 

  
  

  
  

TO
TA
L:

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
0.
00

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
IN
TE
RE
ST

  
  

  
  

TO
TA
L:

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
0.
00

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
MI
SC
EL
LA
NE
OU
S 

  
TO
TA
L:

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
0.
00

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
SE
RV
IC
E 

CH
AR
GE

  
TO
TA
L:

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
0.
00

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
EF
T 

  
  

  
  

  
  

TO
TA
L:

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
0.
00

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
BA
NK
-D
RA
FT

  
  

  
TO
TA
L:

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
0.
00

A
ge

nd
a 

Ite
m

 7
B

D
ec

em
be

r 0
8,

 2
02

1 
- P

ag
e 

15
 o

f 1
15

F
S

A
 A

D
M

 F
E

E



12
/0
1/
20
21

  
3:
29

 P
M 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 C
HE
CK

 R
EC
ON
CI
LI
AT
IO
N 

RE
GI
ST
ER

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 P
AG
E:

  
 1

CO
MP
AN
Y:

  
99

  
- 

PO
OL
ED

 C
AS
H 

FU
ND

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
CH
EC
K 

DA
TE
: 

  
  

 0
/0
0/
00
00

 T
HR
U 

99
/9
9/
99
99

AC
CO
UN
T:

  
1-
10
01
-0
00

  
  

  
PO
OL
ED

 C
AS
H 

OP
ER
AT
IN
G 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
CL
EA
R 

DA
TE
: 

  
  

 0
/0
0/
00
00

 T
HR
U 

99
/9
9/
99
99

TY
PE
: 

  
  

Al
l 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

ST
AT
EM
EN
T:

  
  

  
 0
/0
0/
00
00

 T
HR
U 

99
/9
9/
99
99

ST
AT
US
: 

  
Al
l 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

VO
ID
ED

 D
AT
E:

  
  

 0
/0
0/
00
00

 T
HR
U 

99
/9
9/
99
99

FO
LI
O:

  
  

Al
l 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

AM
OU
NT
: 

  
  

  
  

  
0.
00

 T
HR
U 

99
9,
99
9,
99
9.
99

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
CH
EC
K 

NU
MB
ER
: 

  
  

  
05
93
01

 T
HR
U 

  
  

05
93
04

  
  

 A
CC
OU
NT

  
  

  
  

  
--
DA
TE
--

  
--
TY
PE
--

  
NU
MB
ER

  
--
--
--
--
-D
ES
CR
IP
TI
ON
--
--
--
--
--

  
--
--
AM
OU
NT
--
- 

  
 S
TA
TU
S 

 F
OL
IO

  
CL
EA
R 

DA
TE

 CH
EC
K:

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--

  
  

 1
-1
00
1-
00
0 

  
  

 1
2/
01
/2
02
1 

CH
EC
K 

  
  

05
93
01

  
CO
AS
TA
L 

CO
PY
, 

IN
C.

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 2
30
.0
5C
R 

  
OU
TS
TN
D 

  
A 

  
 0
/0
0/
00
00

   
  

 1
-1
00
1-
00
0 

  
  

 1
2/
01
/2
02
1 

CH
EC
K 

  
  

05
93
02

  
DE

 L
AG
E 

LA
ND
EN

 F
IN
AN
CI
AL

 S
ER
VI

  
  

  
  

 1
50
.1
5C
R 

  
OU
TS
TN
D 

  
A 

  
 0
/0
0/
00
00

   
  

 1
-1
00
1-
00
0 

  
  

 1
2/
01
/2
02
1 

CH
EC
K 

  
  

05
93
03

  
EL
EC
SY
S 

IN
TE
RN
AT
IO
NA
L,

 L
LC

  
  

  
  

  
  

 2
23
.5
0C
R 

  
OU
TS
TN
D 

  
A 

  
 0
/0
0/
00
00

   
  

 1
-1
00
1-
00
0 

  
  

 1
2/
01
/2
02
1 

CH
EC
K 

  
  

05
93
04

  
PA
CI
FI
C 

GA
S 

& 
EL
EC
TR
IC

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 4
,9
47
.1
3C
R 

  
OU
TS
TN
D 

  
A 

  
 0
/0
0/
00
00

   
TO
TA
LS

 F
OR

 A
CC
OU
NT

 1
-1
00
1-
0 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

CH
EC
K 

  
  

  
  

  
TO
TA
L:

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
5,
55
0.
83
CR

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
DE
PO
SI
T 

  
  

  
  

TO
TA
L:

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
0.
00

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
IN
TE
RE
ST

  
  

  
  

TO
TA
L:

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
0.
00

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
MI
SC
EL
LA
NE
OU
S 

  
TO
TA
L:

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
0.
00

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
SE
RV
IC
E 

CH
AR
GE

  
TO
TA
L:

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
0.
00

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
EF
T 

  
  
  

  
  

  
TO
TA
L:

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
0.
00

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
BA
NK
-D
RA
FT

  
  

  
TO
TA
L:

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
0.
00

  
TO
TA
LS

 F
OR

 P
OO
LE
D 

CA
SH

 F
UN
D 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

CH
EC
K 

  
  

  
  

  
TO
TA
L:

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
5,
55
0.
83
CR

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
DE
PO
SI
T 

  
  

  
  

TO
TA
L:

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
0.
00

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
IN
TE
RE
ST

  
  

  
  

TO
TA
L:

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
0.
00

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
MI
SC
EL
LA
NE
OU
S 

  
TO
TA
L:

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
0.
00

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
SE
RV
IC
E 

CH
AR
GE

  
TO
TA
L:

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
0.
00

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
EF
T 

  
  

  
  

  
  

TO
TA
L:

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
0.
00

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
BA
NK
-D
RA
FT

  
  

  
TO
TA
L:

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
0.
00

A
ge

nd
a 

Ite
m

 7
B

D
ec

em
be

r 0
8,

 2
02

1 
- P

ag
e 

16
 o

f 1
15

C
O

P
IE

S
/M

A
IN

T
E

N
A

N
C

E

C
O

P
IE

R
 L

E
A

S
E

E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

 M
O

N
IT

O
R

U
T

IL
IT

Y



12
/0
1/
20
21

  
3:
27

 P
M 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 C
HE
CK

 R
EC
ON
CI
LI
AT
IO
N 

RE
GI
ST
ER

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 P
AG
E:

  
 1

CO
MP
AN
Y:

  
99

  
- 

PO
OL
ED

 C
AS
H 

FU
ND

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
CH
EC
K 

DA
TE
: 

  
  

 0
/0
0/
00
00

 T
HR
U 

99
/9
9/
99
99

AC
CO
UN
T:

  
1-
10
01
-0
00

  
  

  
PO
OL
ED

 C
AS
H 

OP
ER
AT
IN
G 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
CL
EA
R 

DA
TE
: 

  
  

 0
/0
0/
00
00

 T
HR
U 

99
/9
9/
99
99

TY
PE
: 

  
  

Al
l 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

ST
AT
EM
EN
T:

  
  

  
 0
/0
0/
00
00

 T
HR
U 

99
/9
9/
99
99

ST
AT
US
: 

  
Al
l 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

VO
ID
ED

 D
AT
E:

  
  

 0
/0
0/
00
00

 T
HR
U 

99
/9
9/
99
99

FO
LI
O:

  
  

Al
l 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

AM
OU
NT
: 

  
  

  
  

  
0.
00

 T
HR
U 

99
9,
99
9,
99
9.
99

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
CH
EC
K 

NU
MB
ER
: 

  
  

  
05
93
05

 T
HR
U 

  
  

05
93
05

  
  

 A
CC
OU
NT

  
  

  
  

  
--
DA
TE
--

  
--
TY
PE
--

  
NU
MB
ER

  
--
--
--
--
-D
ES
CR
IP
TI
ON
--
--
--
--
--

  
--
--
AM
OU
NT
--
- 

  
 S
TA
TU
S 

 F
OL
IO

  
CL
EA
R 

DA
TE

 CH
EC
K:

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--

  
  

 1
-1
00
1-
00
0 

  
  

 1
2/
01
/2
02
1 

CH
EC
K 

  
  

05
93
05

  
PR
IN
CI
PA
L 

LI
FE

 I
NS
UR
AN
CE

 C
OM
PA

  
  

  
 1
,0
42
.7
4C
R 

  
OU
TS
TN
D 

  
A 

  
 0
/0
0/
00
00

   
TO
TA
LS

 F
OR

 A
CC
OU
NT

 1
-1
00
1-
0 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

CH
EC
K 

  
  

  
  

  
TO
TA
L:

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
1,
04
2.
74
CR

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
DE
PO
SI
T 

  
  

  
  

TO
TA
L:

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
0.
00

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
IN
TE
RE
ST

  
  

  
  

TO
TA
L:

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
0.
00

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
MI
SC
EL
LA
NE
OU
S 

  
TO
TA
L:

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
0.
00

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
SE
RV
IC
E 

CH
AR
GE

  
TO
TA
L:

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
0.
00

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
EF
T 

  
  

  
  

  
  

TO
TA
L:

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
0.
00

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
BA
NK
-D
RA
FT

  
  

  
TO
TA
L:

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
0.
00

  
TO
TA
LS

 F
OR

 P
OO
LE
D 

CA
SH

 F
UN
D 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

CH
EC
K 

  
  

  
  

  
TO
TA
L:

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
1,
04
2.
74
CR

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
DE
PO
SI
T 

  
  

  
  

TO
TA
L:

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
0.
00

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
IN
TE
RE
ST

  
  

  
  

TO
TA
L:

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
0.
00

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
MI
SC
EL
LA
NE
OU
S 

  
TO
TA
L:

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
0.
00

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
SE
RV
IC
E 

CH
AR
GE

  
TO
TA
L:

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
0.
00

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
EF
T 

  
  

  
  

  
  

TO
TA
L:

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
0.
00

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
BA
NK
-D
RA
FT

  
  

  
TO
TA
L:

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
0.
00

A
ge

nd
a 

Ite
m

 7
B

D
ec

em
be

r 0
8,

 2
02

1 
- P

ag
e 

17
 o

f 1
15

E
M

P
LO

Y
E

E
 IN

S
U

R
A

N
C

E



Oceano Community Services District 
1655  Front Street,  P.O. Box 599,  Oceano, CA 93475 

(805) 481-6730        FAX (805) 481-6836 

 

Date: December 8, 2021 

To:   Board of Directors 

From: Carey Casciola, Business and Accounting Manager 

Subject: Agenda Item #7(C): Adopt a Resolution Re-Authorizing Remote Teleconference Meetings 

Recommendation   

It is recommended that your Board adopt a Resolution Re-Authorizing Remote Teleconference Meetings 

Discussion   

The District continues to carefully monitor the COVID-19 Coronavirus pandemic and follow the direction 
of the County Public Health Department in coordination with other local agencies. The Virtual Public Meeting 
Protocols were adopted by the Board on April 8, 2020, and revised on July 8, 2020, with the Declaration to alter 
the meeting location and establish virtual public meeting protocols because of the coronavirus pandemic. 

AB 361 was signed by the Governor on September 16, 2021, which allows public agencies to continue to 
meet remotely during the state of emergency.  On November 10, 2021 the Governor issued an executive order 
N-21-21 that extended the emergency proclamation through March 31, 2022.  The Board has adopted three 
Resolutions authorizing remote teleconference meetings since the month of October.  Attached is a Resolution 
to re-authorize remote teleconference meetings for the period of January 1st to January 30th.  Adoption of the 
Resolution will allow the District to continue to hold remote meetings and help protect the health of the public, 
Board members, and staff. 

Staff intends to continue with remote public meetings for as long as legally permissible.  Once in-person 
meetings resume, the District will continue to follow County Public Health Department recommendations and 
OSHA regulations.  The Brown Act does allow for continued use of videoconference locations under normal 
circumstances, however, notice of public meetings must be posted at each location and the public must be able 
to attend at each location. 

Other Agency Involvement 

None 

Other Financial Considerations 

 None 

 

Agenda Item 7C December 08, 2021 - Page 18 of 115



 Oceano Community Services District 
Board of Directors Meeting 

 

 

Results 

The District’s response to the COVID-19 pandemic contributes to a safe, healthy, livable, and well-
governed community. 

Attachments:   

 Resolution 

Agenda Item 7C December 08, 2021 - Page 19 of 115



RESOLUTION NO. 2021 -      
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE OCEANO COMMUNITY 
SERVICES DISTRICT PROCLAIMING A LOCAL EMERGENCY PERSISTS, RE-

RATIFYING THE PROCLAMATION OF A STATE OF EMERGENCY BY THE 
GOVENOR ISSUED ON MARCH 4, 2020 AND THEN EXTENDED ON NOVEMBER 10, 
2021, AND RE-AUTHORIZING REMOTE TELECONFERENCE MEETINGS OF THE 
OCEANO COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT FOR THE PERIOD JANUARY 1ST 

TO JANUARY 30TH PURSUANT TO BROWN ACT PROVISIONS.  

 
WHEREAS, the Oceano Community Services District is committed to preserving and 

nurturing public access and participation in meetings of the Board of Directors; and  
 
WHEREAS, all meetings of Oceano Community Services District are open and public, as 

required by the Ralph M. Brown Act (Cal. Gov. Code 54950 – 54963), so that any member of the 
public may attend, participate, and watch the District’s legislative bodies conduct their business; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the Brown Act, Government Code section 54953(e), makes provision for 

remote teleconferencing participation in meetings by members of a legislative body, without 
compliance with the requirements of Government Code section 54953(b)(3), subject to the 
existence of certain conditions; and 

 
WHEREAS, a required condition is that a state of emergency is declared by the Governor 

pursuant to Government Code section 8625, proclaiming the existence of conditions of disaster or 
of extreme peril to the safety of persons and property within the state caused by conditions as 
described in Government Code section 8558; and  

 
WHEREAS, a proclamation is made when there is an actual incident, threat of disaster, or 

extreme peril to the safety of persons and property within the jurisdictions that are within the 
District’s boundaries, caused by natural, technological or human-caused disasters; and 

 
WHEREAS, it is further required that state or local officials have imposed or recommended 

measures to promote social distancing, or, the legislative body meeting in person would present 
imminent risks to the health and safety of attendees; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors previously adopted a Resolution 2021-10 on 

September 22, 2021 finding that the requisite conditions exist for the legislative bodies of Oceano 
Community Services District to conduct remote teleconference meetings without compliance with 
paragraph (3) of subdivision (b) of section 54953; and  

 
WHEREAS, as a condition of extending the use of the provisions found in section 

54953(e), the Board of Directors must reconsider the circumstances of the state of emergency that 
exists in the District, and the Board of Directors has done so; and  

 

Agenda Item 7C December 08, 2021 - Page 20 of 115



WHEREAS, such conditions now exist in the District, specifically, the State of Emergency 
declared by Governor Newsom on March 4, 2020 due to COVID-19 and then extended with 
executive order N-21-21 on November 10, 2021 and the Proclamation of Local Emergency 
declared by the County of San Luis Obispo on March 13, 2020; and 

 
WHEREAS, on September 1, 2021, the San Luis Obispo County Health Officer issued 

Order Number 6 requiring face coverings in all public indoor settings attributable to the rise in 
SARS-CoV-2 Delta Variant; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors does hereby find that the rise in SARS-CoV-2 Delta 

Variant has caused, and will continue to cause, conditions of peril to the safety of persons within 
the District that are likely to be beyond the control of services, personnel, equipment, and facilities 
of the District, and desires to affirm a local emergency exists and re-ratify the proclamation of 
state of emergency by the Governor of the State of California and the San Luis Obispo County 
Health Officer’s Order Number 6; and 

 
WHEREAS, as a consequence of the local emergency persisting, the Board of Directors 

does hereby find that the legislative bodies of the Oceano Community Services District shall 
continue to conduct their meetings without compliance with paragraph (3) of subdivision (b) of 
Government Code section 54953, as authorized by subdivision (e) of section 54953, and that such 
legislative bodies shall continue to comply with the requirements to provide the public with access 
to the meetings as prescribed in paragraph (2) of subdivision (e) of section 54953; and   

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors adopted virtual meeting protocols on July 8, 2020 

which include options for public participation.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF OCEANO COMMUNITY 
SERVICES DISTRICT DOES HEREBY RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 
 

1. Section 1. Recitals. The Recitals set forth above are true and correct and are 
incorporated into this Resolution by this reference. 

 

2. Section 2. Affirmation that Local Emergency Persists. The Board of Directors 
hereby considers the conditions of the state of emergency in the District and 
proclaims that a local emergency persists throughout the District, and COVID-19 
has caused, and will continue to cause, conditions of peril to the safety of persons 
within the District that are likely to be beyond the control of services, personnel, 
equipment, and facilities of the District. 

 

3. Section 3. Re-ratification of Governor’s Proclamation of a State of Emergency. The 
Board hereby ratifies the Governor of the State of California’s Proclamation of 
State of Emergency, effective as of its issuance date of March 4, 2020 and then 
extended with executive order N-21-21 on November 10, 2021. 

 

Agenda Item 7C December 08, 2021 - Page 21 of 115



4. Section 4. Remote Teleconference Meetings. The General Manager, staff and 
legislative bodies of Oceano Community Services District are hereby authorized 
and directed to take all actions necessary to carry out the intent and purpose of this 
Resolution including, continuing to conduct open and public meetings in 
accordance with Government Code section 54953(e) and other applicable 
provisions of the Brown Act. 

 

5. Section 5. Effective Date of Resolution. This Resolution shall take effect on 
January 1st and shall be effective until the earlier of (i) January 30th, or such time 
the Board of Directors adopts a subsequent resolution in accordance with 
Government Code section 54953(e)(3) to extend the time during which the 
legislative bodies of Oceano Community Services District may continue to 
teleconference without compliance with paragraph (3) of subdivision (b) of section 
54953. 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of Oceano Community Services District 
on __                              __ by the following roll call votes: 
 
AYES:  
NOES:  
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 
 
 
 
 
__________________________________ 

President of the Board of Directors 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

________________________________ 

Secretary for the Board of Directors 

 

Agenda Item 7C December 08, 2021 - Page 22 of 115



Oceano Community Services District 
1655  Front Street,  P.O. Box 599,  Oceano, CA 93475 

(805) 481-6730        FAX (805) 481-6836 

 

 

Date: December 8, 2021 

To:   Board of Directors 

From: Will Clemens, General Manger 

Subject:    Agenda Item #7(D):  Approval of a Budget Adjustment, CEQA Exemption, and Contract for Consultant 
Services for the Stormwater Capture and Groundwater Recharge Project

Recommendation 

 It is recommended that the Board: 

1. Approve a budget adjustment in the amount of $2,580,090 in the Water Fund from Prop 1 grant revenues 
and water fund reserves for the Stormwater Capture and Groundwater Recharge Project (Project). 

2. Find that the Project is exempt from Section 21000 et seq. of the California Public Resources Code (CEQA) 
and direct the General Manager to sign the Notice of Exemption and file with the County Clerk/Recorder. 

3. Approve the attached contract with Cannon, Inc. for Consultant Services in the amount of $607,300 and 
authorize the President to sign. 

Discussion 

The District was awarded funding under the State Water Board’s (SWB)Technical Assistance (TA) program 
for preliminary design efforts and development of a grant application for funds from Proposition 1, a water bond 
approved by California voters in 2014.  The TA work was directly funded by the SWB and the District did not incur 
costs for those efforts.  The TA preliminary design effort was completed by Cannon, Inc. and the plans were 
prepared to approximately the 60% level.  The current design concept is attached as the project map.  On July 10, 
2019, your Board approved a grant application for a stormwater capture and groundwater recharge project 
(Project) at Oceano Elementary School and on 19th Street between Beach and Paso Robles streets.  The grant 
application was submitted in July 2020.    On March 24, 2021, your Board authorized entering into a funding 
agreement with the SWB to fund implementation of the project.   

It is now necessary to approve the attached contract with Cannon, Inc. to complete the design of the 
project and provide other professional engineering services during the bidding and construction phases of the 
project.  These efforts will be funded by the Prop 1 grant awarded by the SWB. 

 

 

Agenda Item 7D December 08, 2021 - Page 23 of 115



 Oceano Community Services District 
Board of Directors Meeting 

 

 

 

Other Agency Involvement 

 The State Water Board’s TA program directly funded the costs of consultants for project development, 
which were not incurred by the District. The Council for Watershed Health and Cannon, Inc. provided the TA 
funded through the State Water Board’s TA program.  Both the Lucia Mar Unified School District and the County 
of San Luis Obispo provided letters of support for the Project. 

Financial Considerations 

 Based on Oceano’s income status, the District is receiving a discounted local match of 5% on eligible 
project costs.  The following table illustrates the estimated costs for the projects. 

Total Cost Estimate Prop 1 Grant 5% Match  
(Approximate) 

   

$  2,580,090 $  2,450,733 $ 129,357 

   

 It is now necessary to approve a budget adjustment to appropriate the funds necessary to complete the 
Project and to approve the attached CEQA Notice of Exemption for filing with the County Clerk/Recorder.  Annual 
operations and maintenance costs are estimated at less than $5,000.  All local match and annual maintenance 
costs will be funded through the Water Fund of the District. 

Results 

 Pursuing grant revenues and project implementation supports a well-governed, healthy, and 
livable community. 

Attachments:  

Contract with Canon, Inc. 
Project Map 
CEQA Notice of Exemption 

Agenda Item 7D December 08, 2021 - Page 24 of 115



1

AGREEMENT FOR CONSULTANT SERVICES, 
STORMWATER CAPTURE AND 

GROUNDWATER RECHARGE PROJECT
CANNON, INC.

THIS AGREEMENT made and entered into on _December 8___, 2021 by and between the 
Oceano Community Services District, a special district, collectively hereinafter referred to as
DISTRICT and CANNON, INC., hereinafter referred to as CONSULTANT. 

                                           
RECITALS

The DISTRICT desires to retain said services of the CONSULTANT on an independent 
Contractor basis for professional engineering services, more specifically identified in the 
Proposal, Scope of Work and Fee Schedule, jointly attached as Exhibit A to this Agreement,
herein referred to as the PROJECT, subject to the terms and conditions as hereinafter set forth.
Therefore, in consideration of the mutual agreements contained herein, the DISTRICT and the 
CONSULTANT agree as follows:

ARTICLE I. SCOPE OF SERVICES

The CONSULTANT shall complete said PROJECT as specified in Exhibit A, and in accordance 
with local, State and Federal laws.

ARTICLE II. AUTHORIZATION AND COMMENCEMENT OF PERFORMANCE

The services of the CONSULTANT are authorized by the DISTRICT. 

ARTICLE III. COMPENSATION AND PAYMENT

The compensation for the services rendered by the CONSULTANT under this Agreement shall 
be as provided in Exhibit A. Work shall be performed on a base contract, not to exceed basis of 
$607,300 in accordance with Exhibit A. 

The CONSULTANT shall invoice the DISTRICT for the District’s share on a monthly basis, and 
the DISTRICT will pay the CONSULTANT on a monthly basis per billings from the 
CONSULTANT unless otherwise identified in this agreement. The CONSULTANT will submit 
invoices monthly or upon completion of a specified scope of service in accordance with the 
CONSULTANT’s standard invoicing practices.

Payment is due upon receipt of the invoice.  Payments will be made by either check or 
electronic transfer to the address specified by the CONSULTANT, and will reference the 
CONSULTANT’s invoice number.

Attachment - Cannon ContractAgenda Item 7D December 08, 2021 - Page 25 of 115



2

Interest will accrue at the rate of 1% per month of the invoiced amount in excess of 30 days past 
the invoice date.

In the event of a disputed or contested invoice, only that portion so contested will be withheld 
from payment, and the undisputed amounts will be paid.

ARTICLE IV.  TERM OF AGREEMENT

The term of the agreement is set out in Exhibit A and subject to extension if circumstances 
necessitate it and Parties agree to it in writing. This Agreement may be terminated by either the 
DISTRICT or the CONSULTANT with or without any reason, upon giving thirty (30) days written 
notice to other party. In the event of termination, CONSULTANT shall be paid for work 
performed to the termination date.

Upon termination, CONSULTANT immediately shall turn over to the District any and all copies 
of videotapes, studies, sketches, drawings, computations, and other data, whether or not 
completed, prepared by CONSULTANT, and for which CONSULTANT has received reasonable 
compensation, or given to CONSULTANT in connection with this Agreement. Such materials 
shall become the DISTRICT’s permanent property, provided, however, CONSULTANT shall not 
be liable for the DISTRICT’s use of incomplete materials or for the DISTRICT’s use of complete 
documents if used for other than the project or scope of services contemplated by this 
Agreement.

Both parties agree to submit any claims, disputes or controversies arising out of or in relation to 
the interpretation, application, or enforcement of this Agreement to non-binding mediation 
pursuant to the Rules for Commercial Mediation of the American Arbitration Association, as a 
condition precedent to litigation or any other form of dispute resolution.

The prevailing party in any action between the parties to this Agreement brought to enforce the 
terms of this Agreement or arising out of this Agreement shall recover from the other party its 
reasonable costs and attorney’s fees expended in connection with such an action.

ARTICLE V.  INSURANCE

A. The CONSULTANT shall obtain and maintain during the performance of any services under 
this Agreement the following insurance coverage, issued by a company satisfactory to the 
DISTRICT. 

1) Commercial general liability insurance including a contractual liability endorsement in an 
amount not less than $1,000,000 combined single limit for bodily injury and property 
damage for each claimant for general liability, including a non-owned automobile 
endorsement;

2) Errors and omissions insurance to a minimum coverage of $500,000, with neither the 
CONSULTANT nor listed sub-consultants having less than $500,000 individually;

3) Workers’ compensation insurance in compliance with the laws of the State of California. 

Attachment - Cannon ContractAgenda Item 7D December 08, 2021 - Page 26 of 115



3

B. Certificates of insurance evidencing the coverages required by the clauses set forth above 
shall be filed with the DISTRICT prior to the effective date of this Agreement.  This is a 
condition precedent to the formation of any obligation by the DISTRICT to compensate 
CONSULTANT under this Agreement.

C. All insurance policies required by this section shall not be canceled, limited or non-renewed 
without first giving 30 days written notice to the DISTRICT.  

D. The CONSULTANT agrees that the commercial general liability insurance policy shall be 
endorsed to name the DISTRICT, its Board of Directors, officers and employees as 
additional insured and to provide that the coverages provided to the DISTRICT shall be 
primary and not contributing to or in excess of any existing the DISTRICT’s insurance 
coverages.

E. All insurance standards applicable to the CONSULTANT shall also be applicable to the 
CONSULTANT’S subconsultants.  The CONSULTANT agrees to maintain appropriate 
agreements with subconsultants and to provide proper evidence of coverage upon receipt of 
a written request from the DISTRICT.

ARTICLE VI. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR/PERSONAL SERVICE

The CONSULTANT shall perform the services hereunder as an independent contractor and 
shall not be considered an employee of the DISTRICT for any purposes.  The CONSULTANT is 
not entitled to any District benefits, including PERS, unemployment compensation, health 
insurance, or any other benefit.  Only personnel listed in Exhibit A shall perform services called 
for under this Agreement and shall not employ or otherwise incur an obligation to pay persons, 
specialists, experts, or subconsultants for services in connection with the services to be 
performed under this Agreement without prior written approval of the DISTRICT. 

ARTICLE VII. ASSISTANCE BY DISTRICT  

Subject to other provisions of this Agreement, the DISTRICT shall provide the CONSULTANT
with copies of any specifications, maps, drawings, records, or other documentation, which are 
required by the CONSULTANT in order to perform the services specified herein.  The
DISTRICT shall provide all further reasonably necessary information to the CONSULTANT upon
the CONSULTANT’s request. 

ARTICLE VIII. INDEMNIFICATION

CONSULTANT, to the extent permitted by law, agrees to indemnify and save harmless the 
DISTRICT and its Board members, officers, employees and agents from:

Third Party Claims.  Any and all claims and demands made against the DISTRICT or its Board 
members, officers, employees or agents by reason of any injury to or death of or damage to any 
person or entity, of any nature whatsoever, arising out of CONSULTANT’s performance of 
services under this Agreement however caused, excepting, however, any such claims and 
demands which are the result of the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the DISTRICT or its 
Board members, officers, employees or agents;

Attachment - Cannon ContractAgenda Item 7D December 08, 2021 - Page 27 of 115



4

DISTRICT Property Damage Claims.  Any and all damage to or destruction of the property of 
the DISTRICT, its Board members, offices, employees or agents or used by or in the 
CONSULTANT’s care, custody, or control, arising out of CONSULTANT’s performance of 
services under this Agreement however caused, excepting, however, any such claims and 
demands which are the result of the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the DISTRICT or its 
Board members, officers, employees or agents;

CONSULTANT Employee, Subconsultant and Agent Claims.  Any and all claims and 
demands which may be made against the DISTRICT or its Board members, officers, employees 
or agents by reason of any injury to or death of or damage suffered or sustained by any 
CONSULTANT employee, subcontractor or agent under this Agreement, arising out of 
CONSULTANT’s performance under this Agreement however caused, excepting, however, any 
such claims and demands which are the result of the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the 
DISTRICT or its Board members, officers, employees or agents. 

ARTICLE IX. ASSIGNMENT

This Agreement shall not be assigned by either party without the prior written approval of the 
other.

ARTICLE X. NON-DISCRIMINATION

The CONSULTANT will refrain from discriminatory employment actions or practices on the 
basis of the race, color, age, sex, sexual orientation, religious creed, national origin, or ancestry 
of any employee or applicant for employment.

ARTICLE XI. ENTIRE AGREEMENT

This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties hereto relating to the 
subject matter hereof and supersedes any previous agreements or understandings.

Attachment - Cannon ContractAgenda Item 7D December 08, 2021 - Page 28 of 115



5

AGREEMENT FOR CONSULTANT SERVICES, 
STORMWATER CAPTURE AND 

GROUNDWATER RECHARGE PROJECT
CANNON, INC.

SIGNATURE PAGE

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have entered into this Agreement effective as of 
the day and year first written above.

OCEANO COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

           
Board of Directors President    Date

Attest:

            
General Manager     Date

Approved as to Form:

            
DISTRICT’s Legal Counsel    Date

CANNON, INC.

              
Signature           Date

              
Name       Title

Attachment - Cannon ContractAgenda Item 7D December 08, 2021 - Page 29 of 115



6

EXHIBIT A 

19TH STREET STORMWATER CAPTURE AND GROUNDWATER RECHARGE PROJECT

SCOPE OF WORK - CANNON CORPORATION CONSULTANT SERVICES

Task 1. Direct Project Administration

1.1 Grant Agreement

1.1.1 Provide support to the Oceano Community Services District General Manager 
(General Manager) during the grant agreement process with the State Water Board 
(SWB).

1.2 Project Management and Administration

1.2.1 Provide all technical and administrative services as needed for Project completion; 
monitor, supervise, and review all work performed; and coordinate budgeting and 
scheduling to ensure the Project is completed within budget, on schedule, and in 
accordance with approved procedures, applicable laws, and regulations. 

1.2.2 Notify the Project Manager at least fifteen (15) working days in advance of upcoming 
meetings, workshops, and trainings.

1.2.3 Develop and update appropriately a detailed Project schedule, including key Project 
milestones, and submit to the Project Manager. 

1.2.4 Conduct periodic and final site visits with the Project Manager.

1.2.5 Conduct pre-, during, and post-construction photo monitoring at the Project site and 
submit to the Project Manager.

1.2.6 Coordinate with and obtain assistance from the General Manager as needed. 
Provide the General Manager with all reports, schedules, and updates prior to or 
concurrently with those provided to the Project Manager.

1.2.7 Progress Reports

Submittal of quarterly progress reports, using a format provided by the 
Project Manager, within forty-five (45) days following the end of the calendar 
quarter (March, June, September, and December) to the Project Manager. 
Progress reports must provide a brief description of activities that have 
occurred, milestones achieved, monitoring results (if applicable), and any 
problems encountered in the performance of the work under this Agreement 
during the applicable reporting period. Reporting is required even if no 
Project-related activities occurred during the reporting period. The reports will 
document all activities and expenditures per data provided by the General 
Manager, including work performed by contractors.

1.2.8 As-Needed Reports

Expeditious submittal of any reports, data, and information reasonably required by 
the Division including, but not limited to, material necessary or appropriate for 
evaluation of the funding program or to fulfill any reporting requirements of the state 
or federal government.

Attachment - Cannon ContractAgenda Item 7D December 08, 2021 - Page 30 of 115



7

1.2.9  Final Reports 

At the conclusion of the Project, the following will be submitted to the Project 
Manager:

1.2.9.1 Draft Final Project Report. Prepare and submit to the Project Manager for 
comment a draft Final Project Report in a format provided by the Project 
Manager. 

1.2.9.2 Final Project Report. Prepare a Final Project Report that addresses, to the 
extent feasible, comments made by the Project Manager on the draft Final 
Project Report. Submit one (1) reproducible master copy and an electronic 
copy.  Upload an electronic copy in pdf format to the Financial Assistance 
Application Submittal Tool (FAAST) system (available at 
https://faast.waterboards.ca.gov).

1.2.9.3 Final Project Summary. Prepare a brief summary of the information 
contained in the Final Project Report using a format provided by the Project 
Manager and include accomplishments, recommendations, and lessons 
learned, as appropriate.  Upload an electronic copy in pdf format to the 
FAAST system.

1.2.9.4 Final Project Inspection and Certification. Upon completion of the Project, 
Cannon and General Manager shall provide a final inspection and shall 
certify that the Project has been completed in accordance with this 
Agreement, any final plans and specifications submitted to the State Water 
Board, and any amendments or modifications thereto. If the Project involves 
the planning, investigation, evaluation, design, or other work requiring 
interpretation and proper application of engineering, or other professionals, 
the final inspection and certification shall be conducted by a California 
Registered Civil Engineer or other appropriate California registered 
professional. The results of the Final Project Inspection and Certification shall 
be submitted to the Project Manager.

Task 2. Planning, Design, Engineering, Environmental

2.1. Planning, Design, and Engineering

2.1.1 Prepare a Design Report that includes a geotechnical analysis and hydrology study 
to support the design plans and specifications and submit to the Project Manager for 
comment.

2.1.2 Prepare the one hundred percent (100%) design plans and specifications with a 
summary describing: any changes that may affect the Project quantities and benefits 
listed in this item and final secured match sources and amounts that will satisfy 
Match Contribution and submit to the Project Manager for approval.  The Project shall 
capture, treat, and/or infiltrate storm water and dry weather runoff collected from a 
minimum of seventeen (17) acres of drainage area.  The Project shall be designed to 
manage a minimum of seven (7) acre-feet per year of runoff using the following 
approaches:

2.1.2.1 A minimum of sixty (60) linear feet of storm drain and a minimum of one (1) 
manhole to convey stormwater to the subsurface infiltration gallery in Item
2.1.2.2.

Attachment - Cannon ContractAgenda Item 7D December 08, 2021 - Page 31 of 115



8

2.1.2.2 A subsurface infiltration gallery at Oceano Elementary School with a 
minimum design storage capacity of nineteen thousand six hundred 
(19,600) cubic feet. 

2.1.2.3 A minimum of five hundred (500) linear feet of curb and gutter with curb-
cuts. 

2.1.2.4 A minimum of one thousand nine hundred (1,900) square feet of 
bioretention area. 

2.1.2.5 A minimum of seven thousand one hundred (7,100) square feet of 
impervious surfaces with pervious pavement and/or landscaping.

2.1.2.6 A minimum of thirty-two (32) street trees. 

2.2 Supplemental Geotechnical and Surveying

2.2.1 Obtain additional geotechnical analysis including percolation tests at the future 
infiltration gallery site and recommended structural paving sections for new paving, 
sidewalks, and walkways.

2.2.2 Obtain additional topographic surveying to gather locations and elevations of existing 
site and street features and appurtenances.

2.2.2.1 Submit Global Positioning System (GPS) information for project site(s) and 
monitoring location(s) for this Project to the Project Manager. Submittal 
requirements for GPS data are available at: 
http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/water_issues/programs/grants_loans/grant_in
fo/docs/gps.pdf.

2.3 Environmental and Permits

2.3.1 Environmental Compliance and Permitting

Project Funds for implementation/construction will not be disbursed until California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) documents, permitting, access negotiations and 
other required approvals are complete.

2.3.1.1 Complete documentation required under CEQA for the proposed 
implementation project. Take all required steps to prepare, circulate, and 
certify the required CEQA document(s). 

2.3.1.1.1 Submit the draft CEQA document to the Project Manager for 
comment, if applicable.

2.3.1.1.2 Submit the final CEQA document to the Project Manager.

2.3.1.1.3 Obtain written environmental clearance from the Project Manager 
confirming the State Water Board has made its own 
environmental findings and concurred that 
implementation/construction may proceed. 

2.3.2 Obtain all public agency approvals, entitlements, or permits required for Project 
implementation before field work begins. If the Project is carried out on lands not 
owned by the Recipient, the Recipient must obtain adequate rights of way for the 
Useful Life of the Project. Submit a list and signed copies of such approvals, 
entitlements or permits to the Project Manager.

Attachment - Cannon ContractAgenda Item 7D December 08, 2021 - Page 32 of 115



9

2.3.3 Comply with the Department of General Services, Division of State Architect (DSA) 
process for design plan approval, if required.

2.3.3.1 Submit design plans and specification approved in Item 2.1.2 to DSA for 
approval, or;

2.3.3.2 Provide a letter certifying the Project is exempt from DSA review and the 
basis for the exemption to the Project Manager.

2.3.4 Submit proof of design plan approval received from DSA, if required, including 
comments or changes, electronically to the Project Manager prior to preparing the bid 
documents in Item 2.4.  

2.4 Construction Bid Documents, Bid, Award

2.4.1 Complete the bid documents in accordance with the approved design plans, after 
receiving all required approvals, and advertise the Project for bid. Submit the 
advertised bid documents and bid summary to the Project Manager.

Task 3. Construction and Implementation

3.1 Construction Site Management

3.1.1 Award the construction contract(s) and submit the Notice(s) to Proceed and 
awarded contract(s) for the Project to the Project Manager.

3.1.2 Provide construction administration during construction and submit any proposed 
changes that arise during construction that may affect the Project’s benefits listed in 
Item 2.1.2, schedule, or costs to the Project Manager for approval.

3.1.2.1 Submit as-built drawings and a summary of changes from the approved 
design plans and specifications that occurred during construction to the 
Project Manager.

3.1.3 Provide coordination and oversight related to the contractor’s preparation and 
implementation of a SWPPP and the required BMPs and erosion control devices 
and methods.

3.3 Prepare an Operations and Maintenance Plan that addresses operation and maintenance of 
the Project for its Useful Life and submit to the Project Manager for approval.

3.3.1 Prepare a memorandum of understanding and/or agreements that are required to 
Operate and Maintain the Project. 

3.3.1.1 Submit the draft memorandum of understanding and/or agreements to the 
Project Manager for comment. 

3.3.1.2 Submit the executed (final) memorandum of understanding and/or 
agreements to the Project Manager.

Task 4. Monitoring, Performance

4.1 PAEP Revisions, Implementation

4.1.1 Prepare and submit an updated Project Assessment and Evaluation Plan (PAEP) 
which describes the manner in which the Project performance will be assessed, 
evaluated, and reported to the Project Manager for approval.  The PAEP shall 
detail the methods of measuring and reporting Project benefits. Implementation of 

Attachment - Cannon ContractAgenda Item 7D December 08, 2021 - Page 33 of 115



10

any monitoring and performance assessment and/or evaluation actions shall not 
occur prior to PAEP approval by the Project Manager. 

4.2 PAEP Data Management and Reporting

4.2.1 Measure, evaluate, and document Project performance based on the effectiveness 
criteria in the approved PAEP. Include results of the performance assessment, 
along with any supporting data and analysis, in the associated quarterly progress 
report and the Final Project Report.

SCHEDULE

Submittal Description Estimated Due Date

1.   Draft CEQA Exemption December 2021
2.   GPS Information January 2022
3.   Project Assessment and Evaluation January 2022
4.   Detailed Project Schedule February 2022 
5.   Final CEQA Exemption February 2022
6.   Signed Approvals, Entitlements, Encroachment Permits February 2022
7.   Design Report May 2022
8.   100% Plans and Specifications and Summary June 2022
9.   Draft MOUs August 2022
10.  Final MOUs January 2023
11.  DSA Exemption or Approval January 2023
12.  Advertised Bid Documents February 2023
13.  Construction Notice to Proceed April 2023
14.  Construction Completion August 2023
15.  As-built Drawings and Summary of Changes December 2023
16.  Operations and Maintenance Plan December 2023
17.  Progress Reports Quarterly, beginning March 2022
18.  Draft Final Project Report December 2023
19.  Final Project Summary, Inspection and Certification December 2023
20.  Final Project Report January 2024

ASSUMPTIONS AND EXCLUSIONS

1. Task 3.2 Construction / Implementation is a general contractor task and is not included in Cannon’s 
scope of services.

2. Task 4.3 Monitoring Equipment and Installation is not in Cannon’s scope of services.

3. Tasks 5.1, 5.2, and 5.3 Education and Outreach are not in Cannon’s scope of services.

4. Based on an August 2021 discussion with San Luis Obispo County staff, it is assumed that the 
County will grant right-of-way approval and issue an encroachment permit prior to the approval of 
the construction documents.

5. It is assumed that a CEQA exemption for the project will be granted and accepted by the SWB. 

6. It is assumed that a timely and reasonable Memorandum of Understanding will be agreed to by the 
OCSD and the Oceano Elementary School / Lucia Mar School District for the use of the school’s 
property for the installation, operation, and maintenance of the infiltration gallery.

Attachment - Cannon ContractAgenda Item 7D December 08, 2021 - Page 34 of 115



11

FEE SUMMARY

1. Direct Project Administration
Task 1.1 Grant Agreement/Kick-Off Meeting $380
Task 1.2 Project Administration & Reporting $91,765

2. Planning/Design/Engineering/ Environmental
Task 2.1 Design, Plans, Specs, Estimate $174,715
Task 2.2 Supplemental Geotechnical and Surveying $31,770
Task 2.3 Environmental and Permits (CEQA, County permits) $19,885
Task 2.4 Construction Bid documents/Bid/Award $33,630

3. Construction/Implementation
3.1 Construction Administration & Management, Record Drawings $237,475
3.3 Operations and Maintenance Protocols $9,880

4. Monitoring/Performance
4.1 PAEP Revisions/Implementation $4,000
4.2 PAEP data management and reporting $3,800

Total: $607,300

Attachment - Cannon ContractAgenda Item 7D December 08, 2021 - Page 35 of 115



12

2021/22 Fee Schedule
Bill Rate Ranges

Subject to change 

Assistant Resident Engineer 135$      -  157$     Project Designer 83$        -  127$    
Associate Construction Engineer 110$      -  120$     Project Engineer 120$      -  153$    
Associate Engineer 140$      -  177$     Project Manager / Sr. Principal 195$      -  220$    
Associate Land Surveyor 160$      -  185$     Resident Engineer 155$      -  177$    
Associate Landscape Architect 145$      -  156$     Sr. Associate Engineer 150$      -  193$    
Automation Design/Project Engineer 115$      -  140$     Sr. Automation Specialist 163$      -  183$    
Automation Specialist 135$      -  153$     Sr. Automation Technician 126$      -  141$    
Automation Technician 95$        -  112$     Sr. CAD Tech 90$        -  110$    
Accounting Specialist 45$        - 65$       Sr. Construction Engineer 175$      -  195$    
Accounting Mgr/ Sr. Specialist 90$        - 150$     Sr. Construction Manager 180$      -  200$    
Business Services Administrator I - III 62$        -  81$       Sr. Consultant / Principal-in-Charge 176$      -  260$    
Architect Senior Associate 175$      - 195$     Sr. Land Surveyor 171$      -  205$    
CAD Tech 85$        -  103$     Sr. Landscape Architect 153$      -  170$    
CAD Manager 100$      -  120$     Sr. Principal Designer 110$      -  162$    
Construction Inspector I - III 110$      -  136$     Sr. Principal Engineer 180$      -  237$    
Construction Manager 155$      -  173$     Sr. Project Designer 105$      -  139$    
Design Engineer 110$      -  141$     Sr. Project Engineer 130$      -  165$    
Department Manager 180$      -  235$     Sr. Project Manager 190$      - 213$    
Director 190$      -  225$     Sr. Resident Engineer 172$      -  198$    
Engineer Tech 98$        -  108$     Structures Representative 172$      -  182$    
Engineering Assistant I - II 80$        -  105$     Survey Assistant 80$        -  105$    
Engineering Manager 210$      -  230$     Survey Manager / Survey Director 195$      -  235$    
Grant Funding Manager I - II 130$      -  157$     Survey Technician I - VI 110$      -  173$    
I&E Construction Coordinator I - II 93$        -  125$     Technical Writer I - IV 90$        -  136$    
I&E Services Coordinator 80$        -  92$       
Information Systems Admin/Manager 75$        -  125$     Survey Crew Rates - Regular
Land Surveyor I - V 150$      -  205$     One-Man Field 180$    
Landscape Architect 105$      -  119$     Two-Man Field 255$    
Landscape Designer I - II 80$        -  113$     Three-Man Field 335$    
Lead Automation Specialist 147$      -  162$     Two-Man - HDS 295$    
Lead Automation Technician 105$      -  125$     
Lead Designer 100$      -  133$     Survey Crew Rates - Prevailing Wage
Office Engineer / Construction I - III 98$        -  130$     One-Man Field 230$    
Principal Automation Specialist 160$      -  180$     Two-Man Field 305$    
Sr. / Plan Check Engineer I - III 125$      - 177$     Three-Man Field 435$    
Planner I - III 83$        -  113$     
Planning Assistant I 55$        -  70$       Electrical - Prevailing Wage
Principal Construction Engineer 185$      -  198$     Electrician 110$      -  184$    
Principal Designer 110$      -  145$     
Principal Engineer 170$      -  217$     CM - Prevailing Wage
Project Coordinator I - II 88$        -  112$     BCI Construction Inspector 145$    

Forensics Engineering / Expert Testimony Fee Schedule Available Upon Request

Other Direct Charges
Black Line Plots $2.00 per page Color Plots $5.00 per page
Outside Reproduction Cost + 15% Travel and Related Subsistence Cost + 15%
Automation & Electrical Materials Cost + 25% (+tax) Standard Mileage Rate IRS Rate per mile
Subconsultant Fees Cost + 10% Airplane Mileage Rate GSA Rate per mile

All of the above hourly rates include all direct labor costs and labor overhead, general and administrative expenses and profit.  All direct expenses, such 
as special equipment, shipping costs, travel other than by automobile, parking expenses, and permit fees will be billed at the actual cost plus 15%. If the 
client requests, or the client’s schedule requires work to be done on an overtime basis, a multiplier of 1.5 will be applied to the stated rates for weekdays 
for daily hours in excess of 8 as well as weekends and a multiplier of 2.0 for daily hours in excess of 12 and holidays. If the client requests field services 
to be provided outside of normal working hours (between 6:00 p.m. and 6:00 a.m.), a multiplier of 1.5 will be applied to the stated rates. For prevailing 
wage projects, if the client requests field services to be provided on any given Sunday, a multiplier of 2.0 will be applied to the stated rates and on or 
around an observed holiday, other rates may be applied. Survey Crews and Automation Field staff are billed portal to portal, and mileage charges are 

included in the hourly rate.  A minimum charge of 4 hours will be charged for any Automation Field Service calls outside of normal working hours 
(between 6:00 p.m. and 6:00 a.m.).  The stated rates are subject to change, typically on an annual basis.

Attachment - Cannon ContractAgenda Item 7D December 08, 2021 - Page 36 of 115



10
50

 S
ou

th
w

oo
d 

D
riv

e
Sa

n 
Lu

is
 O

bi
sp

o,
 C

A 
93

40
1

P 
80

5.
54

4.
74

07
  F

 8
05

.5
44

.3
86

3

A
tta

ch
m

en
t -

 M
ap

A
ge

nd
a 

Ite
m

 7
D

D
ec

em
be

r 0
8,

 2
02

1 
- P

ag
e 

37
 o

f 1
15



Notice of Exemption Appendix E 

 

Revised 2011 

To:  Office of Planning and Research 
 P.O. Box 3044, Room 113 
 Sacramento, CA 95812-3044 

 County Clerk 

 County of:  __________________  
  ___________________________  

  ___________________________  

From: (Public Agency):  ____________________________ 

 _______________________________________________ 

 _______________________________________________ 

 (Address) 

 

Project Title:  ____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Project Applicant:  ________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Project Location - Specific: 
 
 
 
Project Location - City:  ______________________  Project Location - County:   _____________________ 

Description of Nature, Purpose and Beneficiaries of Project: 

 
 
 
 
 
Name of Public Agency Approving Project: _____________________________________________________ 

Name of Person or Agency Carrying Out Project: ________________________________________________ 

Exempt Status:  (check one): 

 Ministerial (Sec. 21080(b)(1); 15268); 

 Declared Emergency (Sec. 21080(b)(3); 15269(a)); 

 Emergency Project (Sec. 21080(b)(4); 15269(b)(c)); 

 Categorical Exemption. State type and section number:  ____________________________________ 

 Statutory Exemptions. State code number:  ______________________________________________ 

Reasons why project is exempt: 
 
 
 
 
 
Lead Agency   
Contact Person:  ____________________________  Area Code/Telephone/Extension:  _______________ 
 
If filed by applicant:

1. Attach certified document of exemption finding. 
 2. Has a Notice of Exemption been filed by the public agency approving the project?   Yes     No 
 
Signature:  ____________________________  Date:   ______________  Title:   _______________________ 

  Signed by Lead Agency  Signed by Applicant 
 
Authority cited: Sections 21083 and 21110, Public Resources Code.   Date Received for filing at OPR: _______________  
Reference: Sections 21108, 21152, and 21152.1, Public Resources Code. 

 
   

 

 

Agenda Item 7D December 08, 2021 - Page 38 of 115



Oceano Community Services District 
1655  Front Street,  P.O. Box 599,  Oceano, CA 93475 

(805) 481-6730        FAX (805) 481-6836 

 

Date: December 8, 2021 

To:   Board of Directors 

From: Will Clemens, General Manager 

Subject:      Agenda Item # 8(A):  Consideration of Options for a Special Tax to Fund Fire and Emergency Medical 
Service 

Recommendation 

 It is recommended that the Board: 

1. Receive a presentation of Special Tax Options to place on the June 2022 ballot to fund Fire and Emergency 
Medical Services and provide staff direction as appropriate. 

2. Approve the attached letter to the County. 

Discussion 

 The FCFA was formed July 9, 2010, based upon a Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement (JPA) entered into 
by the cities of Arroyo Grande and Grover Beach, and the Oceano Community Services District (OCSD). The FCFA 
is a consolidation of three individual fire departments, operating out of the three existing member community fire 
stations.  

A five-year Strategic Plan was adopted by the FCFA Board of Directors in 2017 and has provided a 
foundation for needed investment to replace obsolete capital equipment including fire engines and self-contained 
breathing apparatus, along with critically needed staffing. The plan, along with the JPA, budgets and other FCFA 
documents can be obtained at: http://www.fivecitiesfireauthority.org/documents. 

Due to both the need to reevaluate the existing JPA provisions and the increased investment in the fire 
department, the member communities approved the initial Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) amending the 
FCFA JPA in May 2018. The intent of this amendment was to facilitate a negotiation of the existing cost sharing 
methodology and to consider changes to specific language in the existing agreement.  

Based on staff recommendations, the member communities approved a second amendment to the JPA in 
June 2019 to change the JPA funding formula to provide greater equity in funding among member agencies.  This 
change would first be implemented with a transitional change to the original funding formula along with a 
provision requiring Oceano to place a revenue measure on the ballot in March 2020 to provide additional long-
term funding for fire and emergency medical services. The amendment identified both a future funding formula 
(should Oceano be successful with their election) along with a defined “wind-down” process timeline should a 

Agenda Item 8A December 08, 2021 - Page 39 of 115



 Oceano Community Services District 
Board of Directors Meeting 

 

 

member community leave the JPA or the JPA were to be dissolved. The amendment committed the member 
communities to a specific funding level through June 30, 2021.  

The March 2020 Oceano election failed to pass by 10 votes. This indicated that over 66% of Oceano voters 
desired to remain as part of the FCFA and were willing to pay more to fund emergency fire and medical service in 
Oceano.  In June 2020, a third amendment to the JPA was approved given the very slim margin of the Oceano 
revenue measure defeat.  This allowed the communities to extend their existing contribution amounts for an 
additional two years to provide certainty and stability for the agencies when planning for fire service costs 
considering the economic challenges associated with COVID-19 at the time.   

The third amendment identifies the following: 

 The communities continue to contribute at the same funding levels identified in the second amendment 
to the JPA 

 Oceano agreed to undertake the legally required procedures for either a citizen initiative or District 
initiated measure to place a special tax on the 2022 primary ballot 

 Should the ballot measure pass, the new funding formula will be implemented July 1, 2022 
 Should the ballot measure fail, a wind-down period (and related work program) will result in Oceano no 

longer being part of the JPA effective June 30, 2023 
 Work program elements related to identification of assets, liabilities and distribution of assets and 

liabilities identified with specific dates 

While all three communities have a goal of consistent station staffing of three personnel daily as identified 
in the Strategic Plan, the current funding formula and budget reflects the current staffing levels between the two 
cities which have three personnel and Oceano which has two personnel. The Oceano Station has one full-time Fire 
Captain, and the other firefighter position is staffed through the Reserve Program.   

The Reserve Program was intended to be phased out by 2022 with all positions transitioned to full-time, 
however, due to the failure of Measure A-20, funding for the Oceano Station is inadequate to complete this 
transition.  As Reserve Firefighters have left the Program or have been hired full-time, this has caused a staffing 
shortage at the Oceano Station.  There currently is only one Reserve Firefighter remaining in the program.  Staffing 
is only sufficient to cover one or two of the three regular shifts in Oceano depending on the reserve firefighter’s 
availability. 

Other Agency Involvement 

FCFA member agencies include the Cities of Arroyo Grande and Grover Beach along with the District. 

Financial Considerations 

 The Special Tax proposed in March 2020 was a flat annual amount of $180 per parcel which was chosen 
over a benefit unit approach based on land use.  At the September 22, 2021, meeting, direction was given to staff 

Agenda Item 8A December 08, 2021 - Page 40 of 115



 Oceano Community Services District 
Board of Directors Meeting 

 

 

 
 

Agenda Item 8A December 08, 2021 - Page 41 of 115

 PowerPoint Presentation
 Letter to County

Attachments:

Consideration of fire and emergency services promotes a safe and well governed community.

Results

and the new amount will be included in the FY 2022/23 budget.
ballot measure is unsuccessful.  Should the ballot measure pass, the new funding formula will become effective, 
The District’s cost of FCFA operations will remain at the current level of $1,138,148 through FY 2022/23 if the 2022 

preferred approach.
PowerPoint  presentation  will  be  discussed,  and  the  proposed  ballot  measure  will  be  based  on  the  Board’s 
to provide parcel tax modeling services to compare different approaches.  The attached Parcel Tax Model and 
to return with a comparison of the flat parcel tax approach with a tax based on square footage.  NBS was engaged 



Oceano Community Services District 
1655  Front Street,  P.O. Box 599,  Oceano, CA 93475 

(805) 481-6730        FAX (805) 481-6836 

www.oceanocsd.org 

December 8, 2021 
 
 
Wade Horton, County Administrative Officer 
County of San Luis Obispo 
San Luis Obispo, Ca 93408 
 
 
Subject: Developing Options for an Organizational Change for Medical Emergency and Fire Response Service 
 
 
Mr. Horton, 

At this time, you may be aware that the Oceano Community Services District (OCSD) will need voters to 
approve a special tax in the June 2022 election for the community to continue as a member of the Five Cities Fire 
Authority.  Until the outcome of that special tax vote is known, uncertainty exists regarding how OCSD might 
provide medical emergency and fire response services in the future.  The OCSD is interested in initiating 
consultation with the County on possible options and service levels should OCSD need to divest of its medical 
emergency and fire response services.  Addressing the possibility of the County providing these services is 
important so that voters have the best information possible when they decide how to vote.   

 
The OCSD Board has directed me to request clarification on the County’s policy that states that the 

“County will consider all available resources and financing options.”  We recognize that property taxes currently 
allocated to OCSD for medical emergency and fire services will need to be reallocated to the County as a condition 
for the County’s willingness to provide services to Oceano in the future.  Currently, property taxes available for 
transfer to the County for these services are approximately $1,050,000 annually.  In addition to a property tax 
transfer, we would like clarification on what else the County might require from OCSD under your adopted policy.   

 
More specifically, we are requesting clarification on the following questions if the June 2022 special tax 

does not pass and the OCSD pursues divestiture of medical emergency and fire response services through the San 
Luis Obispo County Local Agency Formation Commission.    

 
1. What level of service could the County provide to Oceano with the existing tax revenue stream? 
2. Will the County allocate any additional funding needed to provide 24/7 service to Oceano? 
3. Will the County expect OCSD to transfer ownership of the Oceano Fire Station? 
4. Will the County expect OCSD to transfer ownership of the Sheriff Substation in Oceano? 
5. Will the County expect OCSD to transfer any other real property? 
6. Will the County expect OCSD to transfer its solid waste franchise authority? 

Agenda Item 8A December 08, 2021 - Page 42 of 115



 Oceano Community Services District 
Board of Directors Meeting 

 

 

 
The OCSD appreciates our cooperative relationship with the County and looks forward to working 

together to ensure medical emergency and fire response services continue to be provided adequately to the 
community.  We look forward to your reply.  

 
 
 

Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Will Clemens, General Manager 
Oceano Community Services District 

 

Agenda Item 8A December 08, 2021 - Page 43 of 115



O
ce

an
o 

Co
m

m
un

ity
 S

er
vi

ce
s D

ist
ric

t
Sa

ra
 M

ar
es

De
ce

m
be

r 8
, 2

02
1

Ag
en

da
 It

em
 8

A

December 08, 2021 - Page 44 of 115



2

Ag
en

da

Le
gi

sla
tiv

e 
an

d 
Fi

sc
al

 C
on

te
xt

Pa
rc

el
 Ta

x

Co
m

m
un

ity
 F

ac
ili

tie
s D

ist
ric

t

Pu
bl

ic 
En

ga
ge

m
en

t
Ag

en
da

 It
em

 8
A

December 08, 2021 - Page 45 of 115



3

Pr
op

os
iti

on
 

13
Pr

1
Le

gi
sla

tiv
e 

an
d 

Fi
sc

al
 C

on
te

xt

A
Vo

te
r a

pp
ro

ve
d 

in
iti

at
iv

e 
19

78

B
As

se
ss

ed
 V

al
ue

 
in

cr
ea

se
 li

m
ite

d 
to

 
2%

 a
 y

ea
r

C
1%

 ra
te

 ca
p 

on
 a

d 
va

lo
re

m
 p

ro
pe

rt
y 

ta
x

D
CA

 C
on

st
itu

tio
n 

Ar
tic

le
 X

III
 A

Ag
en

da
 It

em
 8

A

December 08, 2021 - Page 46 of 115



4

Pr
op

os
iti

on
 

21
8

Pr

2
Le

gi
sla

tiv
e 

an
d 

Fi
sc

al
 C

on
te

xt
A

Vo
te

r a
pp

ro
ve

d 
in

iti
at

iv
e 

19
96

B
St

ric
t r

ul
es

 o
n 

be
ne

fit
 

as
se

ss
m

en
ts

, 
En

gi
ne

er
’s 

Re
po

rt

C
Go

ve
rn

m
en

to
w

ne
d 

pr
op

er
ty

 n
ot

 e
xe

m
pt

D
Pr

ot
es

t B
al

lo
t 

Pr
oc

ee
di

ng

E
CA

 C
on

st
itu

tio
n 

Ar
tic

le
 X

III
 C

 &
 D

Ag
en

da
 It

em
 8

A

December 08, 2021 - Page 47 of 115



5

Pr
op

os
iti

on
 

26
Pr

3Le
gi

sla
tiv

e 
an

d 
Fi

sc
al

 C
on

te
xt

A
Vo

te
r a

pp
ro

ve
d 

in
iti

at
iv

e 
20

10

B
Ad

ds
 d

ef
in

iti
on

 o
f “

ta
x”

 to
 C

A 
Co

ns
tit

ut
io

n

C
“T

ax
” 

ex
clu

de
s v

ar
io

us
 ch

ar
ge

s, 
in

clu
di

ng
 fe

es
 a

nd
 a

ss
es

sm
en

ts

D
Ge

ne
ra

l T
ax

 re
qu

ire
s m

aj
or

ity
 

vo
te

, S
pe

cia
l T

ax
 re

qu
ire

s 2
/3

 
vo

te

E
CA

 C
on

st
itu

tio
n 

Ar
tic

le
 X

III
 C

 &
 D

Ag
en

da
 It

em
 8

A

December 08, 2021 - Page 48 of 115



6

Pa
rc

el
 Ta

x

Pa
rc

el
 Ta

x

A
Lo

ca
l s

pe
cia

l t
ax

 m
ea

su
re

B
Un

ifo
rm

ity
 re

qu
ire

m
en

ts

C
2/

3 
Vo

te
r A

pp
ro

va
l

D
Go

ve
rn

m
en

t C
od

e 
Se

c.
 5

00
75

 a
nd

 
fo

llo
w

in
g

Pa

4

Ag
en

da
 It

em
 8

A

December 08, 2021 - Page 49 of 115



7

Pa
rc

el
 Ta

x 
M

od
el

 O
pt

io
ns

•
Pe

r P
ar

ce
l M

od
el

•
Pe

r L
ot

 S
qu

ar
e 

Fo
ot

 M
od

el

•
Pe

r B
ui

ld
in

g 
Sq

ua
re

 F
oo

t M
od

el

Ag
en

da
 It

em
 8

A

December 08, 2021 - Page 50 of 115



8

Pe
r P

ar
ce

l M
od

el

Pr
os

: 
•

St
ra

ig
ht

 fo
rw

ar
d,

 e
as

y 
fo

r v
ot

er
s t

o 
un

de
rs

ta
nd

Co
ns

: 
•

Ve
ry

 la
rg

e 
pa

rc
el

s p
ay

 th
e 

sa
m

e 
am

ou
nt

 a
s v

er
y 

sm
al

l p
ar

ce
ls

•
Un

le
ss

 d
iff

er
en

t r
at

es
 a

re
 se

t (
se

e 
Sc

en
ar

io
 #

2)
, d

ev
el

op
ed

 
an

d 
un

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
pr

op
er

ty
 p

ay
 th

e 
sa

m
e 

am
ou

nt

Ag
en

da
 It

em
 8

A

December 08, 2021 - Page 51 of 115



9

Sc
en

ar
io

 1
 |

 F
la

t R
at

e 
Pe

r P
ar

ce
l 

Fl
at

 R
at

e 
Pe

r P
ar

ce
l

Ta
xa

bl
e 

Pa
rc

el
s

De
ve

lo
pe

d 
Pa

rc
el

s
2,

04
8

Un
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

Pa
rc

el
s

23
4

To
ta

l P
ar

ce
l C

ou
nt

2,
28

2

Re
ve

nu
e 

Go
al

Ra
te

 p
er

 P
ar

ce
l

$4
10

,7
60

 
$1

80
.0

0 

Ag
en

da
 It

em
 8

A

December 08, 2021 - Page 52 of 115



10

Sc
en

ar
io

 2
 |

 D
ev

el
op

ed
 / 

Un
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

Ra
te

s
De

ve
lo

pe
d 

/ U
nd

ev
el

op
ed

 R
at

es
Ta

xa
bl

e 
Pa

rc
el

s
De

ve
lo

pe
d 

Pa
rc

el
s

2,
04

8
Un

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
Pa

rc
el

s
23

4
To

ta
l P

ar
ce

l C
ou

nt
2,

28
2

Re
ve

nu
e 

Go
al

Ra
te

 p
er

 D
ev

 
Pa

rc
el

Ra
te

 p
er

 U
nd

ev
 

Pa
rc

el
$4

10
,7

60
 

$1
98

.5
1 

$1
8.

00
 

41
0,

76
0 

19
4.

85
 

50
.0

0 
41

0,
76

0 
19

0.
28

 
90

.0
0 

Ag
en

da
 It

em
 8

A

December 08, 2021 - Page 53 of 115



11

Pe
r L

ot
 S

qu
ar

e 
Fo

ot
 M

od
el

Pr
os

:
•

La
rg

er
 p

ar
ce

ls 
pa

y 
m

or
e 

th
an

 sm
al

le
r p

ar
ce

ls;
 

m
ay

 b
e 

se
en

 a
s m

or
e 

eq
ui

ta
bl

e
•

Lo
w

 st
at

ed
 ra

te
 m

ay
 b

e 
m

or
e 

ap
pe

al
in

g 
to

 v
ot

er
s

Co
ns

:
•

Un
le

ss
 d

iff
er

en
t r

at
es

 a
re

 se
t (

se
e 

Sc
en

ar
io

 #
4)

, d
ev

el
op

ed
 

an
d 

un
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

pr
op

er
ty

 p
ay

 th
e 

sa
m

e 
am

ou
nt

•
M

os
t v

ot
er

s d
o 

no
t k

no
w

 th
ei

r l
ot

 sq
ua

re
 fo

ot
ag

e,
 so

 it
 ca

n 
be

 d
iff

icu
lt 

fo
r t

he
m

 to
 k

no
w

 h
ow

 m
uc

h 
th

ey
 w

ill
 p

ay

Ag
en

da
 It

em
 8

A

December 08, 2021 - Page 54 of 115



12

Sc
en

ar
io

 3
 |

 F
la

t R
at

e 
Pe

r L
ot

 S
q 

Ft
Fl

at
 R

at
e 

Pe
r L

ot
 S

q 
Ft

Av
er

ag
e 

lo
t s

qu
ar

e 
fo

ot
ag

e 
fo

r a
n 

SF
R 

pa
rc

el
 is

 6
,4

06
, r

es
ul

tin
g 

in
 a

n 
av

er
ag

e 
SF

R 
ta

x o
f $

10
0.

57

Ta
xa

bl
e 

Pa
rc

el
s

De
ve

lo
pe

d 
Pa

rc
el

s L
ot

 S
q 

Ft
21

,8
44

,2
41

Un
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

Pa
rc

el
s L

ot
 S

q 
Ft

4,
23

8,
14

6
To

ta
l L

ot
 S

q 
Ft

26
,0

82
,3

87

Re
ve

nu
e 

Go
al

Ra
te

 p
er

 Lo
t S

q 
Ft

$4
10

,7
60

 
$0

.0
15

7 

Ag
en

da
 It

em
 8

A

December 08, 2021 - Page 55 of 115



13

Sc
en

ar
io

 4
 |

 Lo
t S

q 
Ft

 D
ev

el
op

ed
/U

nd
ev

el
op

ed
 R

at
es

Lo
t S

q 
Ft

 D
ev

el
op

ed
 / 

Un
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

Ra
te

s
Ta

xa
bl

e 
Pa

rc
el

s
De

ve
lo

pe
d 

Pa
rc

el
s 

Lo
t S

q 
Ft

21
,8

44
,2

41
Un

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
Pa

rc
el

s 
Lo

t S
q 

Ft
4,

23
8,

14
6

To
ta

l L
ot

 S
q 

Ft
26

,0
82

,3
87

Re
ve

nu
e 

Go
al

Ra
te

 p
er

 D
ev

 
Lo

t S
q 

Ft
Ra

te
 p

er
 U

nd
ev

 
Lo

t S
q 

Ft
$4

10
,7

60
 

$0
.0

16
9 

$0
.0

10
0 

Av
er

ag
e 

lo
t s

qu
ar

e 
fo

ot
ag

e 
fo

r a
n 

SF
R 

pa
rc

el
 is

 6
,4

06
, r

es
ul

tin
g 

in
 a

n 
av

er
ag

e 
SF

R 
ta

x o
f $

10
8.

26

Ag
en

da
 It

em
 8

A

December 08, 2021 - Page 56 of 115



14

Pe
r B

ui
ld

in
g 

Sq
ua

re
 F

oo
t M

od
el

Pr
os

:
•

Pa
rc

el
s w

ith
 la

rg
er

 st
ru

ct
ur

es
 p

ay
 m

or
e 

th
an

 p
ar

ce
ls 

w
ith

 
sm

al
le

r s
tr

uc
tu

re
s;

 m
ay

 b
e 

se
en

 a
s m

or
e 

eq
ui

ta
bl

e
•

Lo
w

 st
at

ed
 ra

te
 m

ay
 b

e 
m

or
e 

ap
pe

al
in

g 
to

 v
ot

er
s

Co
ns

:
•

No
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

ty
 to

 d
iff

er
en

tia
te

 b
et

w
ee

n 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

an
d 

un
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

pr
op

er
ty

•
No

 ta
x o

n 
un

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
pr

op
er

ty
•

Da
ta

 is
 m

iss
in

g 
fo

r 6
.9

7%
 o

f p
ar

ce
ls;

 b
ui

ld
in

g 
sq

ua
re

 fo
ot

ag
e 

da
ta

 is
 g

en
er

al
ly

 n
ot

 a
 v

er
y 

ac
cu

ra
te

 d
at

a 
se

t
•

M
os

t v
ot

er
s d

o 
no

t k
no

w
 th

ei
r b

ui
ld

in
g 

sq
ua

re
 fo

ot
ag

e,
 so

 it
 

ca
n 

be
 d

iff
icu

lt 
fo

r t
he

m
 to

 k
no

w
 h

ow
 m

uc
h 

th
ey

 w
ill

 p
ay

Ag
en

da
 It

em
 8

A

December 08, 2021 - Page 57 of 115



15

Sc
en

ar
io

 5
 |

 F
la

t R
at

e 
Pe

r B
ld

g
Sq

 F
t

Fl
at

 R
at

e 
Pe

r B
ld

g
Sq

 F
t

Av
er

ag
e 

bu
ild

in
g 

sq
ua

re
 fo

ot
ag

e 
fo

r a
n 

SF
R 

pa
rc

el
 is

 1
,2

45
, r

es
ul

tin
g 

in
 a

n 
av

er
ag

e 
SF

R 
ta

x o
f $

17
2.

68
17

1 
pa

rc
el

s w
ith

 n
o 

Bl
dg

Sq
 F

t d
at

a 
av

ai
la

bl
e

Ta
xa

bl
e 

Pa
rc

el
s

De
ve

lo
pe

d 
Pa

rc
el

s B
ld

g 
Sq

 F
t

2,
96

2,
24

8
Un

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
Pa

rc
el

s B
ld

g 
Sq

 F
t

0
To

ta
l B

ld
g 

Sq
 F

t
2,

96
2,

24
8

Re
ve

nu
e 

Go
al

Ra
te

 p
er

 B
ld

g 
Sq

 F
t

$4
10

,7
60

 
$0

.1
38

7 

Ag
en

da
 It

em
 8

A

December 08, 2021 - Page 58 of 115



16

Q
ue

st
io

ns
 a

nd
 C

om
m

en
ts

Ag
en

da
 It

em
 8

A

December 08, 2021 - Page 59 of 115



Oceano Community Services District 
1655  Front Street,  P.O. Box 599,  Oceano, CA 93475 

(805) 481-6730        FAX (805) 481-6836 

 

Date: December 8, 2021 

To:   Board of Directors 

From: Will Clemens, General Manager  

Subject: Agenda Item #8(B)– Election of District Officers and 2022 Committee Assignments  

Recommendation 

It is recommended that your Board: 

1. Conduct the election of the President and Vice President in accordance with Government Code Section 
61043(a) and the District’s by-laws. 

2. Appoint board members to Committee Assignments 

Discussion 

Government Code Section 61043(a) requires that the District Offices of President and Vice President are 
determined within 45 days after the general election and that a board of directors may elect the officers of the 
board annually.  The District’s by-laws provide that your Board will annually elect the President and Vice 
President during the first regular meeting in December.  Also attached is the roster of the current year 
Committee Assignments.   

There are four types of committee assignments: 

1. Committee assignments to other agency Boards and Committees 
2. OCSD Ad Hoc Committees 
3. Liaison assignments with other Boards and Committees 
4. OCSD Standing Committees - None 

Committee Assignments to other agency Boards and Committees 

These assignments provide appointees with formal authority to act on behalf of the community.  The 
roles are either as a final decision-maker or they represent an advisory role. 

 

 

 

Agenda Item 8B December 08, 2021 - Page 60 of 115



 Oceano Community Services District 
Board of Directors Meeting 

 

 

       Assignment Final Decision 
Making Role 

Advisory 
Role 

South San Luis Obispo County Sanitation District Board of Directors X  

Five Cities Fire Authority Board of Directors X  

Water Resource Advisory Committee (WRAC)  
For the San Luis Obispo County Flood Control and Water 
Conservation District – Countywide Water Resources 

 X 

Regional Water Management Group (RWMG) 
For the San Luis Obispo County Integrated Regional Water 
Management Plan (IRWMP) 

 X 

Zone 3 Advisory Committee  
For the San Luis Obispo County Flood Control and Water 
Conservation District (Lopez Water Supply Project)* 

 X 

State Water Sub Contractors Advisory Committee  
For the San Luis Obispo County Flood Control and Water 
Conservation District 

 X 

Oceano Advisory Committee  
For the County of San Luis Obispo 

 X 

Code Enforcement 
           For the County of San Luis Obispo 

 X 

RFP Ad Hoc Committee  
           For the District 

 X 

Social Media Ad Hoc Committee 
           For the District 

 X 

Old Firehouse Art Ad Hoc Committee 
           For the District 

 X 

* Note: The Zone 3 Advisory Committee has formal decision-making role to modify delivery of water under the Low 
Reservoir Response Plan during drought emergencies. 

Other Agency Involvement 

n/a 

Other Financial Considerations 

n/a 

 

 

Agenda Item 8B December 08, 2021 - Page 61 of 115



 Oceano Community Services District 
Board of Directors Meeting 

 

 

Results 

Election of the President and Vice President in accordance with the District’s by-laws helps to promote a 
well governed community. 

 

Attachments:   2021 Committee Assignments 

  

Agenda Item 8B December 08, 2021 - Page 62 of 115



2021 COMMITTEE & SUBJECT MATTER ASSIGNMENTS 
 

COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS TO OTHER AGENCY BOARDS AND COMMITTEES   Subject Matter Assignments 
/ Expertise 

 
SSLOCSD Austin Gibson 

1st & 3rd Wed/6:00/Jan.-June 
OCSD/July-Dec. Arroyo Grande 
City Council Chamber 215 E. 
Branch Arroyo Grande, CA 93420 

Wastewater 

Five Cities Fire 
Authority White Villa 

3rd Fri./10:00/Grover Beach City 
Council Chamber 154 S. 8th St. 
Grover Beach, CA 93433 

Emergency Services 

Water Resource 
Advisory Comm.  
(WRAC)  

Gibson Austin 
1st Wed/1:30/SLO County Library 
Room 995 Palm St. San Luis 
Obispo, CA 93401 

Regional Water Programs 

Regional Water Mgt. 
Group (RWMG – 
IRWMP) 

Villa Gibson 
1st Wed/9:00/SLO County Library 
Room 995 Palm St. San Luis 
Obispo, CA 93401 

Regional Water Programs 

Zone 3 (Lopez Water) Gibson Villa 3rd Thurs Odd/6:30/ Varies Water Supply Contracts 

State Water Gibson Villa Varies Water Supply Contracts 

Oceano Advisory  Villa White 3rd Thursday/5:30/OCSD County Land Use 

OCSD AD HOC - COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS 

RFP Ad Hoc 
Committee 

Gibson Austin Approved 5/10/2017  

Code Enforcement  Villa  White   
Social Media 
Technology Outreach 

Replogle Villa   

Old Firehouse Art Ad 
Hoc Committee  

Austin Gibson Approved 6/26/2019  

LIAISON AND SUBJECT MATTER ASSIGNMENTS 

Supervisor Liaison Austin Varies 

Airport Land Use White 3rd Wed /1:30/County Government Center Board of Supervisors Chamber 
1055 Monterey St Room D170 San Luis Obispo, CA 93401 

CA (Local) Special District's Association Austin Varies (Usually Noon Fri) every other month 

Zone 1/1A Austin 3rd Tues Odd/3:00/Sheriff South Patrol Station 1681 Front St. (Highway 1) 
Oceano, CA 93445 

LAFCO  White 3rd Thur/9:00/ County Government Center Board of Supervisors Chamber 
1055 Monterey St San Luis Obispo, CA 93401 

RWQCB  Gibson Odd Months/Varies 

NCMA Gibson & 
White  Subject Matter Assignment 

SLOCOG Sedimentation White Varies 
Budgets, Fees and Customer Rates and 
Charges 

Villa & 
Gibson Subject Matter Assignment 

IWMA (Integrated Waste Management 
Advisory) 

Replogle 
&Villa  

 

COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS IN GREEN ARE ELIGIBLE FOR OCSD COMPENSATION PER GOV’T CODE 61047 

Agenda Item 8B December 08, 2021 - Page 63 of 115



Oceano Community Services District 
1655  Front Street,  P.O. Box 599,  Oceano, CA 93475 

(805) 481-6730        FAX (805) 481-6836 

 

Date: December 8, 2021 

To:   Board of Directors 

From: Will Clemens, General Manager 

 
Subject:     Agenda Item #9(A): Adoption of an Ordinance Amending District Code 12 – Solid 
Waste and approval of a Letter of Designation for the Integrated Waste Management Authority 

 
 
 Recommendation 

 It is recommended that the Board: 

1. Conduct a public hearing on Ordinance No. 2021-02 
 

2. Waive full reading and Adopt Ordinance No. 2021-02 by title: 

ORDINANCE NO. 2021-02 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE OCEANO COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT TO AMEND TITLE 12 OF THE 
OCEANO COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT CODE OF ORDINANCES AND ADOPT MANDATORY 

SOLID WASTE, ORGANIC WASTE, AND RECYCLING MATERIALS RULES AND REGULATIONS AND 
MAKING A DETERMINATION UNDER CEQA 

3. Approve the attached Letter of Designation for the Integrated Waste Management Agency and 
authorize the General Manager to sign. 

4. Approve the attached Conflict Waiver and authorize the President to sign. 

Discussion 

 In September 2016, Governor Brown signed into law SB 1383 that established methane 
emissions reduction targets in a statewide effort to reduce emissions of short-lived climate pollutants 
(SLCP) in various sectors of California’s economy, including waste disposal. This law is the most 
comprehensive solid waste legislation adopted in California in the last 30 years and expands on the 
requirements of AB 341 (Mandatory Commercial Recycling) and AB 1826 (Mandatory Commercial 
Organics). Organic waste in landfills emits 20% of the state’s methane. Organic waste such as food 
scraps, yard trimmings, paper, and cardboard make up half of what Californians send to landfills. SB 
1383 establishes the reduction of organic waste (food waste, green waste, paper products, etc.) disposal 

Agenda Item 9A December 08, 2021 - Page 64 of 115



 Oceano Community Services District 
Board of Directors Meeting 

 

 

by more than 75% by 2025. In addition, the law requires the state to increase edible food recovery by 
20% by 2025. From 2016-2020, the California Department of Resources, Recycling and Recovery 
(CalRecycle) worked to develop regulations to achieve the goals set in SB 1383. The new regulations 
were finalized by CalRecycle in November 2020. SB 1383 will take effect January 1, 2022, with full 
compliance from organic waste generators and enforcement for those that have not complied 
commencing January 1, 2024. This progressive approach is intended to provide ample time for 
notification to generators what is required of them and achieve compliance before penalties are 
required to be issued by the District or its designee.  

Who is Impacted?  

SB 1383 regulations apply to all persons and entities that generate organic materials such as food scraps 
and plant trimmings. These generators are required to divert their organic materials from the garbage 
while certain entities that provide food will be required to donate their excess food to food banks or 
other organizations to feed people. Generators include:  

• Residents – includes those living in single family or multi-family premises  

• Commercial Entities – includes for-profit and non-profit organizations, government offices and 
agencies, and industrial facilities.  

• Non-Local Entities – includes special districts, state/federal facilities, and prisons.  

• Education Agencies – includes schools, community colleges, and universities.  

Requirements  

SB 1383 allows the District to assign certain items in the regulation to a designee for implementation 
and program management. The District is electing to assign to the San Luis Obispo Integrated Waste 
Management Authority (IWMA) several key areas for implementation and program management on 
behalf of the District as it relates to edible food recovery, contamination monitoring, education and 
outreach, and recordkeeping and reporting to the state. The attached Letter of Designation outlines 
which activities the District is assigning to the IWMA on its behalf.  

In preparation of this major work effort, the IWMA issued a Request for Proposals to hire a consultant to 
develop a strategic plan and related services to plan for SB 1383 implementation, as well as assist IWMA 
member agencies with project management and implementation support. HF&H Consultants, LLC was 
selected. The following summarizes the main areas of focus originally prepared by HF&H based on 
CalRecycle’s regulations and subsequently updated to include action items as the District works through 
each area for implementation. It highlights key requirements for compliance that the IWMA has been 
working on in coordination with its member jurisdictions and waste haulers over the past year.  

Agenda Item 9A December 08, 2021 - Page 65 of 115



 Oceano Community Services District 
Board of Directors Meeting 

 

 

Major Areas of Focus:  

• Collection & Processing - Every household, every business, and every multi-family premises will be 
provided with a 3- container system that the District’s franchise hauler will collect and process: organics 
(green), recycling (blue), and other discarded waste (grey).  

• Edible Food Recovery - An edible food recovery program is to be implemented to educate commercial 
edible food generators about SB 1383 regulations and increasing access to food recovery programs. The 
IWMA has identified Tier 1 and Tier 2 commercial edible food generators and has met with all of them 
to provide information on SB 1383’s requirements to sign an agreement with the food collection 
organization, to not let their edible food spoil, to collect it and have a service transport it to a food bank 
where it can go back for edible human food consumption. The IWMA will also conduct site visits for 
those businesses as required in the regulation.  There are no Tier 1 commercial food generators in 
Oceano currently and Tier 2 commercial food generators, if any, will be identified over the next two 
years.  

• Procurement Requirements - SB 1383 sets a procurement target for each agency.  Moving forward, the 
District will be required to procure paper products with a minimum of 30% recycled content. This 
includes office and janitorial paper products. The District Recycled Content Paper Product Purchasing 
Policy was approved on November 10, 2021, and will bring the District into compliance with SB 1383 
requirements.  

• Enforcement & Penalties - The franchise hauler will need to provide data to the IWMA for compiling, 
analyzing, and reporting to the state. The IWMA will also do contamination monitoring to determine if 
generators are complying with the regulations and provide follow up noticing and education where 
there is non-compliance. The County, District or its designee will handle enforcement for non-
compliance should it be needed. The idea is to seek compliance through education and opportunity to 
correct any issue that arises and using enforcement as a last resort.  

• Education & Outreach - The District’s franchise hauler will provide addresses for where they provide 
collection services so the IWMA can do educational outreach about SB 1383 requirements. The IWMA 
will also be the lead for investigating complaints and do follow up education for any non-compliance 
issues that may arise. The County, District or its designee will handle enforcement for non-compliance 
should it be needed.  

• Record Keeping & Reporting - The franchise hauler will provide data to the IWMA for compiling, 
analyzing, and reporting to the state.  

• Ordinances & Franchise Amendment - The attached Ordinance will bring the District into compliance 
with SB 1383 requirements.  In addition, a franchise amendment has been supplied by the IWMA and 

Agenda Item 9A December 08, 2021 - Page 66 of 115



 Oceano Community Services District 
Board of Directors Meeting 

 

 

will need to be approved to align the agreement with SB 1383 requirements. The IWMA prepared a 
draft amended agreement that staff are in the process of finalizing with the franchise hauler. Staff will 
bring it to the Board for approval and authorization to execute in 2022.  
 
Other Agency Involvement 
 All agencies providing Solid Waste Service are subject to the requirements of SB 1383.  The 
District’s legal counsel also represents the IWMA and several other Districts and has provided the 
attached Conflict Waiver for consideration by the Board. 

Other Financial Considerations 

             Public Resources Code Section 42652.5 authorizes local jurisdictions to collect reasonable and 
necessary fees to recover the costs of implementing SB 1383 regulations. Regarding fee adjustments, 
there are 3 different fee increases, or new fees, that will need to be identified and approved for 
inclusion in the franchise hauler’s rate structure, all of which the final amounts and scheduling for 
implementation are not known at this time as each is still being identified and finalized:  

1. Garbage rates will need to be increased to add the cost of SB 1383 activities undertaken by the 
franchise hauler to comply with the regulation.  

2. IWMA fee that is on the garbage bill as a separate line item (currently 2%, will need to increase for the 
IWMA costs associated with implementing SB 1383). The IWMA Board approved the 1.25% fee increase 
in June 2021, but due to subsequent actions taken by the SLO County Board of Supervisors regarding the 
IWMA JPA membership in July 2021, that previous fee increase action is under review and is expected to 
change.  

3. A District SB 1383 fee will need to be added to the franchise hauler agreement during negotiations 
(like the AB 939 fee in the current agreement) for District staff time associated with SB 1383 
implementation and compliance. Once these fees are fully identified, the District will go through a Prop 
218 process for a rate adjustment resulting from SB 1383 implementation.  

Results 
 Implementation of SB 1383 requirements helps contribute to a safe, healthy, and well governed 
community.  
 
Attachments: 

 Ordinance 2021-02 
 Letter of Designation 
 Conflict Waiver 

Agenda Item 9A December 08, 2021 - Page 67 of 115



Attachment - OrdinanceAgenda Item 9A December 08, 2021 - Page 68 of 115



Attachment - OrdinanceAgenda Item 9A December 08, 2021 - Page 69 of 115



Attachment - OrdinanceAgenda Item 9A December 08, 2021 - Page 70 of 115



Attachment - OrdinanceAgenda Item 9A December 08, 2021 - Page 71 of 115



Attachment - OrdinanceAgenda Item 9A December 08, 2021 - Page 72 of 115



Attachment - OrdinanceAgenda Item 9A December 08, 2021 - Page 73 of 115



Attachment - OrdinanceAgenda Item 9A December 08, 2021 - Page 74 of 115



Attachment - OrdinanceAgenda Item 9A December 08, 2021 - Page 75 of 115



Attachment - OrdinanceAgenda Item 9A December 08, 2021 - Page 76 of 115



Attachment - OrdinanceAgenda Item 9A December 08, 2021 - Page 77 of 115



Attachment - OrdinanceAgenda Item 9A December 08, 2021 - Page 78 of 115



Attachment - OrdinanceAgenda Item 9A December 08, 2021 - Page 79 of 115



Attachment - OrdinanceAgenda Item 9A December 08, 2021 - Page 80 of 115



Attachment - OrdinanceAgenda Item 9A December 08, 2021 - Page 81 of 115



Attachment - OrdinanceAgenda Item 9A December 08, 2021 - Page 82 of 115



Attachment - OrdinanceAgenda Item 9A December 08, 2021 - Page 83 of 115



Attachment - OrdinanceAgenda Item 9A December 08, 2021 - Page 84 of 115



Attachment - OrdinanceAgenda Item 9A December 08, 2021 - Page 85 of 115



Attachment - OrdinanceAgenda Item 9A December 08, 2021 - Page 86 of 115



Attachment - OrdinanceAgenda Item 9A December 08, 2021 - Page 87 of 115



Attachment - OrdinanceAgenda Item 9A December 08, 2021 - Page 88 of 115



Attachment - OrdinanceAgenda Item 9A December 08, 2021 - Page 89 of 115



Attachment - OrdinanceAgenda Item 9A December 08, 2021 - Page 90 of 115



Attachment - OrdinanceAgenda Item 9A December 08, 2021 - Page 91 of 115



Attachment - OrdinanceAgenda Item 9A December 08, 2021 - Page 92 of 115



Attachment - OrdinanceAgenda Item 9A December 08, 2021 - Page 93 of 115



Attachment - OrdinanceAgenda Item 9A December 08, 2021 - Page 94 of 115



Attachment - OrdinanceAgenda Item 9A December 08, 2021 - Page 95 of 115



Attachment - OrdinanceAgenda Item 9A December 08, 2021 - Page 96 of 115



Attachment - OrdinanceAgenda Item 9A December 08, 2021 - Page 97 of 115



Attachment - OrdinanceAgenda Item 9A December 08, 2021 - Page 98 of 115



Attachment - OrdinanceAgenda Item 9A December 08, 2021 - Page 99 of 115



Attachment - OrdinanceAgenda Item 9A December 08, 2021 - Page 100 of 115



Attachment - OrdinanceAgenda Item 9A December 08, 2021 - Page 101 of 115



Attachment - OrdinanceAgenda Item 9A December 08, 2021 - Page 102 of 115



Attachment - OrdinanceAgenda Item 9A December 08, 2021 - Page 103 of 115



Attachment - OrdinanceAgenda Item 9A December 08, 2021 - Page 104 of 115



Attachment - OrdinanceAgenda Item 9A December 08, 2021 - Page 105 of 115



Attachment - OrdinanceAgenda Item 9A December 08, 2021 - Page 106 of 115



Attachment - OrdinanceAgenda Item 9A December 08, 2021 - Page 107 of 115



Oceano Community Services District 
1655  Front Street,  P.O. Box 599,  Oceano, CA 93475 

(805) 481-6730        FAX (805) 481-6836 

www.oceanocsd.org 

 

 

Letter of Designation – Senate Bill 1383 
 December 8, 2021 
  
On December 8, 2021, the Oceano Community Services District (OCSD) Board  adopted ORDINANCE NO. 2021-02 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE OCEANO COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT TO AMEND TITLE 12 OF THE OCEANO 
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT CODE OF ORDINANCES AND ADOPT MANDATORY SOLID WASTE, ORGANIC 
WASTE, AND RECYCLING MATERIALS RULES AND REGULATIONS AND MAKING A DETERMINATION UNDER 
CEQA, which implements the relevant provisions of Senate Bill 1383 (Public Resources Code section 42652-42654) 
and the corresponding regulations in Title 14 of the California Code of Regulations, Division 7, Chapter 12, and 
enables the District to delegate authority for the implementation of Senate Bill 1383 and ORDINANCE NO. 2021-
02 requirements to the extent allowed by law.   
  
I am the designated Signature Authority for the OCSD. Accordingly, I hereby authorize the San Luis Obispo County 
Integrated Waste Management Authority (IWMA) to act as a delegate on behalf of the OCSD for the 
responsibilities of compliance with Senate Bill 1383 and the corresponding regulations in Title 14 of the California 
Code of Regulations, Division 7, Chapter 12 to the extent allowed by law. These delegated responsibilities, include, 
but are not limited to:  
  

(1) Establishing, administering, implementing, educating, and/or operating all state mandated Senate 
Bill 1383 programs. Such programs include, but are not limited to organic waste management, 
education and outreach, monitoring, inspection, and record keeping programs.   

  
(2) Establishing, administering, and implementing the edible food recovery requirements of Senate 

Bill 1383 regulations. Such duties shall include but are not limited to assessment of existing 
capacity for edible food recovery, establishing a food recovery program, inspection of commercial 
generators for compliance, and education and outreach to all businesses, residents, commercial 
edible food generators, and any other entities or parties required by law.  

  
(3) Coordinating with CalRecycle and any other state or federal entities in assessing and ensuring 

compliance with the CalRecycle procurement and pollution reduction targets for each party.  
  
(4) Monitoring and education related to ORDINANCE NO. 2021-02 including monitoring compliance 

through route reviews and evaluations, determining the applicability of waivers, where necessary 
and/or appropriate.   

  
(5) Reporting to CalRecycle on behalf of the OCSD related to its compliance with SB 1383, consistent 

with the requirements prescribed by CalRecycle.  
  
This designation will remain effective until rescinded by my authority, or my successor’s authority.  
  
Sincerely, 
 
Will Clemens 
General Manager 

Agenda Item 9A December 08, 2021 - Page 108 of 115



ADAMSKI MOROSKI MADDEN 
CU M B E R L A N D  &  G R E E N  LLP 

ATTORNEYS AT LAW 

Post Office Box 3835  San Luis Obispo, California 93403-3835 
T  805-543-0990  F  805-543-0980   www.ammcglaw.com 

Paso Robles Office:  1948 Spring Street  Paso Robles, CA 93446-1620  T 805-238-2300  F 805-238-2322

December 2, 2021
 
Oceano Community Services District
Attn: Board of Directors
P.O. Box 599
Oceano, CA. 93475

Re: Conflict Waiver

Dear Directors of the Board:

As you are aware, the San Luis Obispo County Integrated Waste Management Authority 
(“IWMA”) has prioritized the amending of the Joint Powers Agreement (“JPA”) and issues related 
to SB 1383 compliance and implementation. As you are also aware, our office represents the 
IWMA and a number of other local government agencies, including the California Valley 
Community Services District, Heritage Ranch Community Services District, Los Osos Community 
Services District, and San Simeon Community Services District, which are all participants in the 
IWMA alongside Oceano Community Services District (“OCSD”).

While the efforts of the OCSD and the IWMA are cooperative in nature, there is a close 
enough connection between the agencies that I find it prudent to draw your attention to even an 
appearance of conflict.  For example, the IWMA is currently proposing amendments to the JPA.    
These amendments will be considered and ultimately approved by both OCSD and the IWMA. In 
addition, OCSD is in the process of adopting an ordinance related to SB 1383.  Although the
ordinance is necessary to comply with SB 1383, I have worked with the IWMA and its consultants 
to assist OCSD with this ordinance to ensure compliance with CalRecycle requirements. In both 
instances, OCSD and the IWMA are working toward a common objective, yet even where no 
actual conflict exists, there may be an appearance of conflict which I would rather address than 
avoid.

The California Rules of Professional Conduct prevent an attorney from representing a party 
in one matter where that attorney represents a different client in the same matter adverse to the 
first client unless both clients provide informed written consent. The following are the pertinent 
Rules of Professional Conduct related to this engagement:

RULES OF PROFESSIONAL CONDUCT
Rule 1.7 of the California Rules of Professional Conduct provides in 
pertinent part:

(a) A lawyer shall not, without informed written consent* from each 
client and compliance with paragraph (d), represent a client if the 
representation is directly adverse to another client in the same or a 
separate matter. 

Agenda Item 9A December 08, 2021 - Page 109 of 115



Oceano Community Services District
December 2, 2021
Page 2

(b) A lawyer shall not, without informed written consent* from each 
affected client and compliance with paragraph (d), represent a client if 
there is a significant risk the lawyer’s representation of the client will be 
materially limited by the lawyer’s responsibilities to or relationships with 
another client, a former client or a third person,* or by the lawyer’s own 
interests.

(c) Even when a significant risk requiring a lawyer to comply with 
paragraph (b) is not present, a lawyer shall not represent a client without 
written disclosure of the relationship to the client and compliance with 
paragraph (d) where: 

(1) the lawyer has, or knows that another lawyer in the lawyer’s 
firm has, a legal, business, financial, professional, or personal 
relationship with or responsibility to a party or witness in the 
same matter; or

(2) the lawyer knows or reasonably should know that another 
party’s lawyer is a spouse, parent, child, or sibling of the 
lawyer, lives with the lawyer, is a client of the lawyer or another 
lawyer in the lawyer’s firm, or has an intimate personal 
relationship with the lawyer. See Exhibit A (a complete copy 
of Rule 1.7 of the California Rules of Professional Conduct)

Here, because the matters are cooperative in nature, I am confident that I am able to provide 
you competent and diligent representation in all matters even if I simultaneously represent the 
IWMA regarding the same matters. Nevertheless, I am obliged to inform you of any actual or 
reasonably foreseeable adverse effects of this representation.  At this time, it is foreseeable that the
Your Board could perceive my representation of the IWMA as a breach of loyalty.  

YOUR CONSENT

It is understood that this consent will not waive any protection that you may have with 
regard to attorney-client communications with me in this matter.  Those communications will 
remain confidential and will not be disclosed to any third party without your consent.

I believe that the OCSD Board is familiar with the factual background relevant to the 
content of this letter, and that I have given you a sufficiently detailed description for obtaining 
informed written consent.  However, if you believe that there is any other information that you or 
I need to have before such consent can be granted, please let me know immediately or such matters 

Agenda Item 9A December 08, 2021 - Page 110 of 115



Oceano Community Services District
December 2, 2021
Page 3

can be discussed at the December 8, 2021 meeting of the Board. You are advised of your right to 
seek independent legal advice related to the conflict represented by this waiver.  

In the event that circumstances change or I become aware of new information that may 
affect your consent, you will be notified of that fact immediately, and continued representation 
will be subject to the informed written consent of involved parties.

Your execution of this consent form will constitute an acknowledgment of full disclosure 
in compliance with the requirements of Rule 1.7 of the California Rules of Professional Conduct 
previously quoted in this letter.

Very truly yours,

ADAMSKI MOROSKI MADDEN
CUMBERLAND & GREEN LLP

JEFFREY A. MINNERY

JAM:jbg

Oceano Community Services District

Date: __________________
Linda Austin, President

Agenda Item 9A December 08, 2021 - Page 111 of 115



1 

Rule 1.7 Conflict of Interest: Current Clients 
(Rule Approved by the Supreme Court, Effective November 1, 2018) 

(a) A lawyer shall not, without informed written consent* from each client and 
compliance with paragraph (d), represent a client if the representation is directly 
adverse to another client in the same or a separate matter. 

(b) A lawyer shall not, without informed written consent* from each affected client 
and compliance with paragraph (d), represent a client if there is a significant risk 
the lawyer’s representation of the client will be materially limited by the lawyer’s 
responsibilities to or relationships with another client, a former client or a third 
person,* or by the lawyer’s own interests.

(c) Even when a significant risk requiring a lawyer to comply with paragraph (b) is 
not present, a lawyer shall not represent a client without written* disclosure of the 
relationship to the client and compliance with paragraph (d) where:  

(1) the lawyer has, or knows* that another lawyer in the lawyer’s firm* has, a 
legal, business, financial, professional, or personal relationship with or 
responsibility to a party or witness in the same matter; or 

(2) the lawyer knows* or reasonably should know* that another party’s lawyer 
is a spouse, parent, child, or sibling of the lawyer, lives with the lawyer, is 
a client of the lawyer or another lawyer in the lawyer’s firm,* or has an 
intimate personal relationship with the lawyer. 

(d) Representation is permitted under this rule only if the lawyer complies with 
paragraphs (a), (b), and (c), and:  

(1) the lawyer reasonably believes* that the lawyer will be able to provide 
competent and diligent representation to each affected client; 

(2) the representation is not prohibited by law; and 

(3) the representation does not involve the assertion of a claim by one client 
against another client represented by the lawyer in the same litigation or 
other proceeding before a tribunal. 

(e) For purposes of this rule, “matter” includes any judicial or other proceeding, 
application, request for a ruling or other determination, contract, transaction, 
claim, controversy, investigation, charge, accusation, arrest, or other deliberation, 
decision, or action that is focused on the interests of specific persons,* or a 
discrete and identifiable class of persons.* 

Comment 

[1] Loyalty and independent judgment are essential elements in the lawyer’s 
relationship to a client.  The duty of undivided loyalty to a current client prohibits 

EXHIBIT A

Agenda Item 9A December 08, 2021 - Page 112 of 115



2 

undertaking representation directly adverse to that client without that client’s informed 
written consent.*  Thus, absent consent, a lawyer may not act as an advocate in one 
matter against a person* the lawyer represents in some other matter, even when the 
matters are wholly unrelated. (See Flatt v. Superior Court (1994) 9 Cal.4th 275 [36 
Cal.Rptr.2d 537].)  A directly adverse conflict under paragraph (a) can arise in a number 
of ways, for example, when: (i) a lawyer accepts representation of more than one client 
in a matter in which the interests of the clients actually conflict; (ii) a lawyer, while 
representing a client, accepts in another matter the representation of a person* who, in 
the first matter, is directly adverse to the lawyer’s client; or (iii) a lawyer accepts 
representation of a person* in a matter in which an opposing party is a client of the 
lawyer or the lawyer’s law firm.*  Similarly, direct adversity can arise when a lawyer 
cross-examines a non-party witness who is the lawyer’s client in another matter, if the 
examination is likely to harm or embarrass the witness.  On the other hand, 
simultaneous representation in unrelated matters of clients whose interests are only 
economically adverse, such as representation of competing economic enterprises in 
unrelated litigation, does not ordinarily constitute a conflict of interest and thus may not 
require informed written consent* of the respective clients. 

[2] Paragraphs (a) and (b) apply to all types of legal representations, including the 
concurrent representation of multiple parties in litigation or in a single transaction or in 
some other common enterprise or legal relationship.  Examples of the latter include the 
formation of a partnership for several partners* or a corporation for several 
shareholders, the preparation of a pre-nuptial agreement, or joint or reciprocal wills for a 
husband and wife, or the resolution of an “uncontested” marital dissolution.  If a lawyer 
initially represents multiple clients with the informed written consent* as required under 
paragraph (b), and circumstances later develop indicating that direct adversity exists 
between the clients, the lawyer must obtain further informed written consent* of the 
clients under paragraph (a). 

[3] In State Farm Mutual Automobile Insurance Company v. Federal Insurance 
Company (1999) 72 Cal.App.4th 1422 [86 Cal.Rptr.2d 20], the court held that paragraph 
(C)(3) of predecessor rule 3-310 was violated when a lawyer, retained by an insurer to 
defend one suit, and while that suit was still pending, filed a direct action against the 
same insurer in an unrelated action without securing the insurer’s consent.  
Notwithstanding State Farm, paragraph (a) does not apply with respect to the 
relationship between an insurer and a lawyer when, in each matter, the insurer’s interest 
is only as an indemnity provider and not as a direct party to the action. 

[4] Even where there is no direct adversity, a conflict of interest requiring informed 
written consent* under paragraph (b) exists if there is a significant risk that a lawyer’s 
ability to consider, recommend or carry out an appropriate course of action for the client 
will be materially limited as a result of the lawyer’s other responsibilities, interests, or 
relationships, whether legal, business, financial, professional, or personal.  For 
example, a lawyer’s obligations to two or more clients in the same matter, such as 
several individuals seeking to form a joint venture, may materially limit the lawyer’s 
ability to recommend or advocate all possible positions that each might take because of 
the lawyer’s duty of loyalty to the other clients.  The risk is that the lawyer may not be 

Agenda Item 9A December 08, 2021 - Page 113 of 115



3 

able to offer alternatives that would otherwise be available to each of the clients.  The 
mere possibility of subsequent harm does not itself require disclosure and informed 
written consent.*  The critical questions are the likelihood that a difference in interests 
exists or will eventuate and, if it does, whether it will materially interfere with the lawyer’s 
independent professional judgment in considering alternatives or foreclose courses of 
action that reasonably* should be pursued on behalf of each client.  The risk that the 
lawyer’s representation may be materially limited may also arise from present or past 
relationships between the lawyer, or another member of the lawyer’s firm*, with a party, 
a witness, or another person* who may be affected substantially by the resolution of the 
matter. 

[5] Paragraph (c) requires written* disclosure of any of the specified relationships 
even if there is not a significant risk the relationship will materially limit the lawyer’s 
representation of the client.  However, if the particular circumstances present a 
significant risk the relationship will materially limit the lawyer’s representation of the 
client, informed written consent* is required under paragraph (b). 

[6] Ordinarily paragraphs (a) and (b) will not require informed written consent* simply 
because a lawyer takes inconsistent legal positions in different tribunals* at different 
times on behalf of different clients.  Advocating a legal position on behalf of a client that 
might create precedent adverse to the interests of another client represented by a 
lawyer in an unrelated matter is not sufficient, standing alone, to create a conflict of 
interest requiring informed written consent.*  Informed written consent* may be required, 
however, if there is a significant risk that: (i) the lawyer may temper the lawyer’s 
advocacy on behalf of one client out of concern about creating precedent adverse to the 
interest of another client; or (ii) the lawyer’s action on behalf of one client will materially 
limit the lawyer’s effectiveness in representing another client in a different case, for 
example, when a decision favoring one client will create a precedent likely to seriously 
weaken the position taken on behalf of the other client.  Factors relevant in determining 
whether the clients’ informed written consent* is required include: the courts and 
jurisdictions where the different cases are pending, whether a ruling in one case would 
have a precedential effect on the other case, whether the legal question is substantive 
or procedural, the temporal relationship between the matters, the significance of the 
legal question to the immediate and long-term interests of the clients involved, and the 
clients’ reasonable* expectations in retaining the lawyer.

[7] Other rules and laws may preclude the disclosures necessary to obtain the 
informed written consent* or provide the information required to permit representation 
under this rule.  (See, e.g., Bus. & Prof. Code, § 6068, subd. (e)(1) and rule 1.6.)  If 
such disclosure is precluded, representation subject to paragraph (a), (b), or (c) of this 
rule is likewise precluded. 

[8] Paragraph (d) imposes conditions that must be satisfied even if informed written 
consent* is obtained as required by paragraphs (a) or (b) or the lawyer has informed the 
client in writing* as required by paragraph (c).  There are some matters in which the 
conflicts are such that even informed written consent* may not suffice to permit 
representation.  (See Woods v. Superior Court (1983) 149 Cal.App.3d 931 [197 Cal.Rptr. 

Agenda Item 9A December 08, 2021 - Page 114 of 115



4 

185]; Klemm v. Superior Court (1977) 75 Cal.App.3d 893 [142 Cal.Rptr. 509]; Ishmael v. 
Millington (1966) 241 Cal.App.2d 520 [50 Cal.Rptr. 592].) 

[9] This rule does not preclude an informed written consent* to a future conflict in 
compliance with applicable case law.  The effectiveness of an advance consent is 
generally determined by the extent to which the client reasonably* understands the 
material risks that the consent entails.  The more comprehensive the explanation of the 
types of future representations that might arise and the actual and reasonably* 
foreseeable adverse consequences to the client of those representations, the greater 
the likelihood that the client will have the requisite understanding.  The experience and 
sophistication of the client giving consent, as well as whether the client is independently 
represented in connection with giving consent, are also relevant in determining whether 
the client reasonably* understands the risks involved in giving consent.  An advance 
consent cannot be effective if the circumstances that materialize in the future make the 
conflict nonconsentable under paragraph (d).  A lawyer who obtains from a client an 
advance consent that complies with this rule will have all the duties of a lawyer to that 
client except as expressly limited by the consent.  A lawyer cannot obtain an advance 
consent to incompetent representation. (See rule 1.8.8.) 

[10] A material change in circumstances relevant to application of this rule may trigger 
a requirement to make new disclosures and, where applicable, obtain new informed 
written consents.*  In the absence of such consents, depending on the circumstances, 
the lawyer may have the option to withdraw from one or more of the representations in 
order to avoid the conflict.  The lawyer must seek court approval where necessary and 
take steps to minimize harm to the clients.  See rule 1.16.  The lawyer must continue to 
protect the confidences of the clients from whose representation the lawyer has 
withdrawn.  (See rule 1.9(c).) 

[11] For special rules governing membership in a legal service organization, see rule 
6.3; and for work in conjunction with certain limited legal services programs, see rule 
6.5. 

Agenda Item 9A December 08, 2021 - Page 115 of 115


